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School Disftrict of the Chathams

269 Lafayette Avenue Peter Daquila
Chatham, NJ 07928 Business Administrator/
973-457-2526 Board Secretary

973-457-2481 FAX

January 25, 2021

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
The School District of the Chathams
County of Morris, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”) of the School District of the Chathams
(the "District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for
both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and the fairness of the presentation, including
all disclosures, rests with the management of the Board of Education (the "Board"), To the best
of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects
and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the basic financial statements (as noted in
the Table of Contents) and the results of operations and cash flows, where applicable, of the
District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's
financial activities have been included.

The CAFR is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical and single audit. The
infroductory section includes this transmittal letter (designed to complement Management’s
Discussion and Analysis and should be read in conjunction with it), the District's organizational
chart, consultants, independent auditor and advisors and a roster of officials, The financial section
includes the Independent Auditors’ Report, Management’s Discussion and Analysis (immediately
following the Independent Auditor’s Report), the basic financial statements and notes providing
an overview of the District’s financial position and operating results and supplementary schedules
providing detailed budgetary information. The statistical section includes selected economic and
demographic information, financial trends and the fiscal capacity of the District, generally
presented on a multi-year basis and is unandited, The District is required to undergo an annual
single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and
Title 2 U.S, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200 Uniforin Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and the State
Treasury Circular Letter NJ OMB 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipienis of Federal Grants,
State Grants and State Aid. Information related to this single audit, including the auditors' reports
on internal control and compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts and granis along
with any findings and questioned costs, is included in the single audit section of this report,




1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

The School District of the Chathams is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). All funds and the Government-
wide financial stalements of the District are included in this report. The School District of the
Chathams and all its schools constitute the District's reporting entity,

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate for grade levels pre-K
through 12, These services include general and vocational as well as special education for students
with disabilities. The District completed the 2019/2020 fiscal year with an average daily
enrollment of 4,041 students, which is a decrease of 71 students from the previous year's average
daily enroliment, The changes in average daily enrollment over the past five years are as follows:

Average Daily Eorollment

Year Student Enrollment Percent Chainge
201972020 4,041 (1.71Y%
201872019 4,112 (1.3Y%
2017/2018 4,164 (1.2)%
2016/2017 4,213 1.6%

2015/2016 4,145 1.0%

2, ECONOMIC CONDITION AND QUTLOOK.:

Both Chatham Borough and Chatham Township are situated approximately 35 minutes west of
New York City by train, bus or car and are close to major airports and highways, Both
communities are characterized by well-educated, well-resourced and highly supportive residents,
The two communities reflect a blend of metropolitan, historic and bucolic elements that make the
area lighly attractive from a quality of life perspective,

Chatham Borough is primarily a residential community with a small retail center and limited
comumnercial activities, This trend is not expected to change at any time in the near future. Chatham
Borough continues to maintain its high property values and at the same time, the commercial
property values have remained relatively constant.

Chatham Township is a stable, affluent, suburban municipality. Tts predominately residential
property tax base (90%) makes it virtually immune to individual corporate activities, A large
percentage of the community’s land area is wooded county park land and federal wildlife refuge.
These undeveloped tracts give the community a distinctively natural, rural character, which both
protect it from the higher density development more characteristic of surrounding communities
and help maintain its residential property values.

The District has an approximate $5,371,161,300 tax base, which has grown over 100% since 2000;
however, both municipalities conducted a revaluation program in 2004 which affected this
comparison, The tax rate is expected to continue to grow at a modest rate as a result of matket
appreciation. The District exhibits wealth and income levels that are well above state medians,
The District has a low debt burden as a percentage of equalized valuation.




3. MAJOR INITIATIVES AND INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAMS: CURRICULUM

The School District of the Chathams offers a diverse and challenging curriculum that extends
beyond the New Jersey Student Learning Standards. Students perform at a superior level on
slatewide standardized tests. For each of the past three years, over 97% of Chatham High School
graduates have gone on to further their education, with over 90% of these graduates attending four-
year colleges or universities. U.S. News and World Report has placed Chatham High School
among, the top 1% of public high schools in the United States for student achievement and for
learning in Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (8.T.E.M.) education, New
Jersey Monthly has twice ranked Chatham High School as the # 1 school in the state.

Enhancing the educational experience of students is a broad set of extracurricular offerings in the
arts, athletics, service organizations, and special-interest activities. Our choral and music groups
have performed in venues including Carnegie Half and Lincoln Center, muitiple athletic teams
have won New Jersey state championships in recent years, and other extracurricular groups—such
as the Applied Physics and Engineering Club, the Academic Team, and the Model
Congress/United Nations Club—have garnered recognitions and awards.

Members of this school community recognize that academic achievement is important, but not
supreme. The school district is comumitted to developing learners in a manner that emphasizes
socio-emofional needs, character, and tespectfulness. Each of the district’s six schools seeks to
foster school environments free from bullying and rich with experiences that nurture the whole
child. Similarly, the district is commitied to offering programming that is based on the individual
needs of students, be they academic, behavioral, or developmental in nature.

4, INTERNAL CONTROL:

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
system designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse
and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). The internal control system is designed fo provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that these objectives are mel. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1)
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuatlon of
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal awards and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control system is in place to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and regulations refated to those programs. This internal control system is also subject to
periodic evaluation by the District's management.

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of
the internal control system, including that portion related to federal and state awards programs, as
well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws, regulations, contracts and
grants,




5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal controls, the District maintains budgetary controls, The objective of these
budgetary controls is to ensure compliance wilh legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the Board and New Jersey Department of Education, Annual
appropriated budgets are adopted for the general, special revenue and debt service funds, The legal
level of budgetary control is at the line-item level in each fund, Project length budgets are approved
for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budge( amount
as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a
line-ifem basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as
reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year, Those amounts to be reappropriated are
reported as assigned fund balance at June 30, 2020.

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS:

The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated
by the GASB. The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds, These
funds and the government-wide financial statements ate explained in "Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements," Note 1.

7. DEBT ADMINISTRATION:

Under provisions of New Jersey statutes, school districts may not incur indebtedness greater than
4% of the average equalized valvation of taxable property. At June 30, 2020, the District’s
outstanding debt issues are well below the legal debt margin, The District continues to be
committed to providing the debt rating agencies and all other interested parties with annual audited
financial statements and other pertinent ¢credit information relevant to our outstanding securities.

8. FINANCIAL STATUS:

The business administrator and the finance commitfee continue to guide the district with fiscal
prudence while working within the limitations imposed by the state’s 2% cap on the annual
increase of (he tax revenue collected from Chatham Borough and Chatham Township. The
business office utilizes purchasing co-operatives, state contracts and bids fo purchase the materials
needed to operate the District at the lowest possible price. The District has utilized the capital
reserve balance to fund capital improvements at all of the schools instead of incurring additional
debt. The taxpayers approved a $15,864,300 referendum in September 2016. The referendum
was for six (6) projects which include renovating the Chatham High School auditorium, renovating
the Chatham Middle Schoo! auditorium, a STEM classroom addition at the Chatham Middle
School, a four (4) classroom addition at the Milton Avenue School, various improvements at the
Cougar Field complex and partial roof replacements at three (3) schools




9. OTHER INFORMATION:

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Wiss & Company, LLP
has been selected by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes,
the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Federal Uniform Guidance and State
Treasury Circular Letter NT OMB 15-08, The auditors’ report on the basic financial statements,
requited supplementary information and other supplementary information is included in the
financial section of this report. The auditors' reports related specifically to the single audit are
included in the single audit section of this report.

10, ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the staff members of the School District of the
Chathams for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the
school district and thereby confributing their full support to the development and maintenance of
our financial operation, The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without
the efficient and dedicated services of the financial and accounting staff, We also would like to
thank the members of the Board of Education for their support of the school system, the countless
hours they spend working to guide the district and their efforts to ensure that the district continues
to improve and that it remains as one of the top school districts in the state.”

Respectfully submitted,

I
e N o %%WK

Dr, Michael LaSusa Petér Daquila  //
Superintendent Business Admipistrator/Board Secrefary
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A PARTNER TO GROW WITH

Independent Auditors’ Report

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

School District of the Chathams

Chatham, New Jersey

County of Morris

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the School District of the
Chathams, County of Morris, State of New Jersey (the “District”), as of and for the year ended June 30,
2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; audit
requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey;
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards and requirements require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

9
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In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the District as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis, schedule of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability-PERS,
schedule of District pension contributions-PERS, schedule of the State’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability associated with the District-TPAF, schedule of the State’s proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability and changes in the total OPEB liability and related ratios — PERS and TPAF, and budgetary
comparison information as identified in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information, such as
the combining and individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules and the schedules of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, respectively, and the other information, such as the
introductory and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements.
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The combining and individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules and the schedules of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining
and individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules and the schedules of expenditures of
federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 25, 2021
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal

control over financial reporting and compliance.

Scott A. Clelland
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 1049

Wisse % Cruprany~

WISS & COMPANY, LLP
January 25, 2021
Florham Park, New Jersey
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Management's Discussion and Analysis




Board of Education
School District of the Chathams

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2020

This section of the School District of the Chatham’s (the “District”) annual financial report presents its
discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020,
Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the District’s financial
statements, which immediately follow this section.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is Required Supplementary Information specified in the
Governmental Accounting Standard Board’s (GASB) Statement No, 34, Basic Financial Statements — and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments. Certain comparative information
between the current fiscal year and the prior fiscal year is presented in the MD&A.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements.
The District’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This document also contains required and
supplementary information and other information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the assets, deferred outflows and inflows of resources
and liabilities of the District, with the difference between the four reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is
improving or deteriorating,

The statement of activities presents information showing how the net position of the District changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only resuit in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused
vacation leave),

The Government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 21-22 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain contro! over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local governments,
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the
funds of the District can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resotrces, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating government’s near-term financing requirements,
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Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions, Both the governmental fund balance
sheel and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The District maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes
in fund balance for the general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund and debt service fund, all of which
are considered to be major funds.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund, special revenue fund and debt service fund.
Budgetary comparison statements have been provided as required supplementary information for the general fund,
special revenue fund and debt service fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget,
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 23-25 of this report.
Proprietary funds. The District maintains one proprietary fund type. Enterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements, The
District uses an enterprise fund to account for the operations of its food service program.
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 26-28 of this report,
Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of paities outside the
governmental entity. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the District’s own programs.
The District uses agency funds to account for resources held for student activities and groups, unemployment
compensation claims and payroll related liabilities. The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages
29-30 of this report.
Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements, The notes to the basic
financial statements can be found on pages 31-69 of this report.
Other information, The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with governmental funds and
enterprise funds are presented immediately following the notes to the basic financial statements. Combining and
individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 70-94 of this report.
Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for the 2019-2020 fiscal year include the following;

o The State withheld both of the June fiscal year state aid payments until July 2020,

¢ The District made a deposit to its capital reserve in the amount of $2,000,000 and created an
emergency reserve with a deposit of $250,000.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In
the case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $35,146,811 at the close of fiscal 2020, The following table provides a summary of net position at
June 30, 2020 and 2019 relating to the District’s governmental and business-type activities:

Govemmental Activities Business-Type Activitics Total School Distrigs
June 30, June 3G, June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Current and ofher assels $ 8299615 § §,909,929 $ 289,571 % 388400 % 8,589,i%8 § 9,298,329
Capital Assets, net £7,362,081 86,615,904 456,053 481,919 87,818,134 87,097,823
Total Assels 95,661,696 95,525,833 745,624 870,319 96,407,320 96,396,152
Deferred outflows of resources 3,808,752 §,222,614 3,808,752 C 5222614
Current and other labifities 5,587,936 5,429,81C 148,718 150,932 5,736,654 5,580,742
Net pension liability 12,576,236 14,398,532 12,976,236 14,398 532
Long-term fiabilities 41,366,263 44,080,655 - - 41,366,263 44,080,655
Total Liabilities 59,930,435 63,908,997 148,718 150,932 60,079,153 64,059,929
Deferred infiow of resources 5,080,108 4,961,816 5,080,108 4,963,8l6
Net Position:
Net investiment it capital nssels 45,077,251 44,359,450 456,053 481,919 45,533,304 44,841,369
Restricted 5,541,311 3,096,623 5,541,311 3,096,623
Unrestricted {deficil) {16,068,657) (15,580,439 £40,833 237,468 (15,927,804) (15,342,971}
Total Net Position $ 34549905 §  31,8756M4 $ 596906 § 719,387 % 35,1468t & 32,595,021

The largest portion of the District’s net position is its net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, construction-
in progress, buildings and improvements, and machinery, equipment, and vehicles), less any related debt
(bonds payable and capital leases) used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The District uses
these capital assets to provide services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending., Although the District’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources (namely, property
taxes), since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the District’s net position represents resources that are subject to restrictions on how they
may be used. The remaining balance represents unrestricted net position.

The total net position of the District increased $2,551,790 during the current fiscal year, as a result of decreases to
the net pension liability and related deferrals which are allocated to the District by the State, and by current year
operational performance.

Current and other assets decreased mainly due to the spending of restricted cash on capital projects.

Capital assets, net increased due to capital asset additions exceeding depreciation expense.

Long-term liabilities decreased mainly due to the scheduled payment of principal on debt.

The change in the net pension liability and related deferred inflows and outflows is the result of performance

of the Public Employee’s Retirement System pension plan as well as changes in allocations as measured by
the State of New Jersey, Division of Pension and Benefits.
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District Activities. The key elements of the District’s changes in net position for the years ended June 30,
2020 and 2019 are as follows:

June 30, June 39, June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 453,749 $ 284,303 3 852,827 £ 1,266,481 $ 1,306,576 $ 1,550,784
Operating Grants and Contributions 1,100,874 1,246,808 51,973 81,292 1,153,847 1,328,100
Capitat Grants and Contributions 155,339 119,720 155,339 119,720
General Revenue:
Property Taxes 68,517,159 67,289,113 68,517,359 67,289,113
Federal and Siate Aid 19,495,653 21,013,971 19,495,653 21,013,971
Earnings on Investments §64,893 170,781 164,893 170,781
Miscellancous 579,693 649,444 579,693 649,444
Todal Revenue 50,468,560 90,774,140 904,800 1,347,773 51,373,360 02,121,913
Expenses:
Instruction 53,711,562 53,879,765 53,711,562 53,879,765
Support Services 13,303,000 13,804,784 13,303,080 13,804,784
Administration and Business 8,725,854 8,659,386 8,725,894 8,659,386
Maintenance and Operations 7,614,503 7.920,94¢ 7,614,503 7,920,949
Transportation 2,721,247 3,124,966 2,721,247 3,124,966
Special Schools 314,075 279,176 314,075 279,176
Charter Schools 32,757 - 32,757
Interest on long-term tabilities 1,401,918 1,474,153 1,403,918 1,474,153
Business Type Activities 1,027,281 1,241,311 1,027,281 1,241,311
Tota! Expenses 87,794,289 89,175,936 1,027,281 1,241,311 88,821,570 90,417,247
Change in Net Position 2,074,271 1,598,204 (122,481) 106,462 2,551,790 1,704,666
Net position - beginning 31,875,634 30,277,430 719,387 612,925 32,595,021 30,890,355
Net position - ending $ 34549905 § 31,875634 § 506,906 3 719,387 § 35,146,811 $ 32,595,021

Revenue Sources. The District’s total revenue for the 2019/20 school year was $90,468,560. Property taxes
and state formula aid accounted for most of the District’s revenue, with local taxes accounting for
$68,517,359 of the total, or 75.04 percent. Another 21.35 percent came from state aid not restricted for
specific programs, 1.36 percent from operating and capital grants and contributions, 1.43 percent came from
charges for services and the remainder from other miscellaneous sources,

included in the State Aid revenue is the TPAF, Pension and Social Security Employer Share, and retirees’
post-employment benefits paid by the State.  The change from 2018/19 to 2019/20 can be attributed to a
decrease in actuarial determined pension and post-retirement benefits liabilities.

The District primarily conducts its operations from the revenue it receives from its local taxpayers.

Under the New Jersey reporting guidelines, many programs that could be considered instructional programs are
categorized under support services such as tuition paid for special education students placed in private or regional
day schools and library/media services. Health benefits, at the option of the District, paid on behalf of employees,
including instructional, may be charged under the support services category and not by program and function
code.
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Iinancial Analysis of the District’s Funds

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements,

Governmental funds, The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources, Such information is useful in assessing the District’s
financing requirements. The unrestricted fund balance is divided between assigned to and unassigned balances,
The District has assigned portions of the unrestricted fund balance to earmark resources for the payment of certain
government-wide liabilities that are not recognized in the governmental funds.

General Fund. The general fund is the main operating fund of the District. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unassigned fund balance was $1,127,030, while the total fund balance was $6,868,331. The net change
in total fund balance for the General Fund was an increase of $1,994,692, which is mainly attributable to a
reduction of expenditures due to the COVID-19 Pandemic.

Special Revenue Fund. The special revenue fund is used to track the proceeds of specific revenue sources
that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specific purposes, other than debt service or capital
projects. Revenues and expenditures for the current fiscal year were comparable to the prior fiscal year, with
a decrease of $109,315 attributable mainly to a decrease in expenditures of local grants. IDEA continues to
be the largest grant in the special revenue fund, with expenditures in the current fiscal year of $773,430.

Cupital Projects Fund, The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, commifted, or assigned to an expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities and other assets (other than those financed by proprietary funds). The
District approved a bond referendum on Januvary 25, 2017 and issued school bonds in the amount of
$15,864,000 for school building improvements and renovations. During the year ended June 30, 2020, the
District expended the remaining balance of the referendum projects.

Debt Service Fund, The debt service fund accounts for resources accumulated and payments made for
principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds. The fund balance in the
debt service fund is $69,306, which is primarily attributable to a return of unexpended bond proceeds from
the capital projects fund during the current fiscal year as well as due to savings from the bond refunding in
the prior year, Of this fund balance, $48,990 has been designated for use in the 2020-21 budget and $20,316
will be designated for use in the 2021-22 budget.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the
District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following schedule presents a
summary of the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Debt Service Fund revenues for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2020, and the increases and decreases in relation to the prior year,

Increase Percent of

Percent of (Decrease) Increase
Revenue Amount Total from 20(9 (Decrease)
Local Sources $ 69,963,078 81.68%  $1,337,968 1.95%
State Sources 14,878,443 17.37% 851,448 6.07%
Federal Sources 812,547 0.95% (88,912) (9.86%)
$ 85,654,068 100.00%  $2,100,504 2.51%
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The increase in local sources is mainly attributable to an increase in the tax levy of $1,228,246.

The increase of $851,448 or 6.07% of State sources in FY 2020 is mainly the result of a $648,320 increase in the
TPAF Pension benefits paid for by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the District, a $309,073 increase in
categorical special education aid, as well as an increase of TPAF Social Security reimbursed by the state of
$121,117. These increases were offset by decreases in on behalf payments for post-retirement medical benefits.

The decrease of $88,912 or 9.86% of Federal sources in FY 2020 is mainly the result of a decrease in IDEA
revenue of $64,847 in the current year as a result of decreased expenditures as compared with the prior year.
Also contributing to the decrease was a FEMA grant expended in FY 2019 that was not available in FY

2020,

The following schedule presents a summary of Governmental Fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2020 and the mcreases and decreases in relation to the prior year.

Percent Increase Percent of
of (Decrease) Increase

Amount Total from 2019 (Decrease)

Current Expenditures
Instruction $ 31,754,014 37.90% $ 615,921 1.98%
Undistributed 46,124,343 55.05% 173,091 0.38%
Special Schools 187,967 0.22% 26,902 16.70%
Capital Outlay 1,836,431 2,19% (1,926,867) (51.20%)

‘Debt Service

Principal 2,331,449 2.78% 106,959 4.81%
Interest 1,554,668 1.86% (59,623) (3.69%)
$ 83,788,872 100,00% $ (1,063,617) (1.25%)

The increase in undistributed expenditures is attributable mostly to an increase in on-behalf contributions of
approximately $532,793 expenditures paid for by the State of New Jersey on-behalf of the District.

The decrease in capital outlay is a result of a decrease in spending on capital projects,

All other fluctuations are deemed immaterial and no further explanations are deemed necessary.

Business-Type Activities

The net position from the District’s business-type activity decreased in the 2020 fiscal year by $122,481.
This decrease is primarity the result of reduced service beginning in March, 2020 due to the COVID-19

Pandemic.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The District budget is prepared according to New Jersey Statutes. The most significant budgeted fund is the
general fund, During the fiscal year, there were sevetal differences between the original budget and the final
amended budget as a result of transfers being applied to certain tine items. These transfers were made between
line items as part of the normal process as permitted by State guidelines. Readers should refer to Section C of the
financial report for comparisons between actual and budgeted amounts,

Described below are explanations for variations in revenues and expenditures for certain lines where the modified
budgeted amounts differ from the original budget by significant amounts. Al other fiuctuations were considered
immaterial and no explanations were deemed required.

Expenditures

e The modified budget for required maintenance increased from the original budget by $211,734 or
i8.7% mainly as a result of increased cleaning services needed due to the COVID-19 Pandemic.

+ The modified budget for security decreased by $174,048 or 29.0% due to a reduced need for in-
school security beginning in March, 2020 due to the COVID Pandemic.

Described below are explanations for variations in revenues and expenditures for certain lines where the modified
budgeted amounts differ from the actual by significant amounts. All other fluctuations were considered
immaterial and no explanations were deemed required.

Revenues
+ No material revenue variations required explanation in the current year.

Expenditures

s The actual amounts expended for undistributed expenditures — custodial services were less than the
final budget by approximately $302,567 or 7.0% as a result of lower utility costs, related mainly to
mandatory remote learning beginning in March, 2020 through the end of the fiscal year due to the
COVID-19 Pandemic.

e The actual amounts expended for student transportation services were less than the final budget by
$490,736 as a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic causing the District to move to 100% remote
learning beginning in March, 2020,

Capi'tal Assets
As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District had capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, of

$87,818,134 and $87,097,823, respectively, including land, construction in progress, building and
building improvements, land improvements and machinery and equipment noted as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Tyne Activities Total School District
2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19

Land $ 1,616,511 § 11,616,511 $ 11,616,511 § 11,616,511
Construction in Progress 3,813,679 1,512,702 3,813,679 1,512,702
Buildings and Building Improvements 66,622,260 68,336,837 § 289,267 § 290,733 66,911,467 68,627,570
Land Improvements 3,319,809 3,457,148 3,319,809 3,457,148
Machinery and Equipment 1,989,822 1,692,706 166,846 191,186 2,156,668 1,883,892
Total Capital Assets

Net of Depreciation $ 87,362,081 § 86615904 §456,053 § 481,919 § 87,818,134 § 87,097,823
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More detailed information about the District’s capital assets is presented in Note 6 to the District’s basic
financial statements.

Debt Administration and Long-Term Liabilities

‘

The District’s long-term liabilities at June 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows for the governmental activities:

June 30,
2020 2019

General Obligation Bonds 37,075,000 39,119,000
Premium on Bonds 2,700,050 2,907,849
Capital Leases 3,821,208 4,108,656
Compensated Absences 517,569 517,811
Sub-total 44,113,827 46,713,316
Net Pension Liability 12,976,236 14,398,532
57,090,063 61,111,848

More detaiied information about the District’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 7 to the District’s
basic financial statements.

Factors Bearing on the District’s Future

In preparing the 2020-2021 budget, the primary goal of the Board was to develop a budget that would meet
the needs of the school district and comply with the stringent restrictions placed on school district budgets by
legislation. This legislation put a “2% cap” on the local tax levy; therefore, limiting the amount of funds a
district can raise to support its budget.

The Board has opted to continue zero based budgeting to ensure only effective programs/services are funded
in the future. Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, The 2020-2021 unrestricted fund balance will be limited to
4% of our budget as per the New Jersey Department of Education regulations, Thus, it will be more
important than ever to develop a budget that will closely reflect actual expenditures since the small
unrestricted fund balance will not permit much flexibility. Looking ahead to the development of the 2021-
2022 budget, there will be increased demands for more teaching staff, supplies and equipment due to
continued expected enrollment increases (This despite the trend elsewhere in the state). This will be made
more difficult because of the New Jersey Department of Education’s new funding law, This law goes
beyond the capping of revenues for the budget but it also authorizes the Executive Counfy Superintendent to
look into the budget and challenge the District in their expenditure decisions. Further the State has made it
clear that they are moving to reduce the number of school districts in the state by consolidating neighboring
districts or at a minimum to see an expansion of shared services.

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District continues to be affected by the
COVID-19 Pandemic. Technological, safety, cleaning and maintenance, and substitute employece expenses
have all increased in the 2020-21 fiscal year as a result of the Pandemic. The District has received Federal
assistance to mitigate these additional costs. However, the overall costs of these measures will likely have a
negative financial impact on the District.
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Contacting the District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the Distriet’s citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability
for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information,
contact the School Business Administrator, 259 Lafayette Avenue, Chatham, New Jersey 07928,
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Exhibit A-1
BOARD OF EPUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Statement of Net Position
June 306, 2020

Governmental Business-type

Actlvities Activitics Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenis $ 3,465,277 $ 263,946 & 3,720,223
Accounts receivable 718,339 12,962 731,301
Inventories 12,663 12,663
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 4,115,999 4,115,999
Capital assets, non-depreciable 15,430,190 15,430,190
Capital assels, depreciable, net 71,931,891 456,053 72,387,944

Tolal Assels 95,601,696 745,624 96,407,320
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred loss on refunding of debt 1,311,428 1,310,428
Pension deferrals 2,587,324 2,587,324
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,898,752 3,898,752
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,753,79} 33,325 1,787,116
Accrued interest payabie 674,426 674,426
Payable to state government 9,854 9,854
Unearned revenue 402,30 115,393 517,694
Noncurrent liabilities:

Net pension Hability 12,976,236 12,976,236

Due within one year 2,747,564 2,747,564

Due beyond one year 41,366,263 - 41,366,263

Total Ligbilities 59,930,435 148,718 60,079,153
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals 5,080,108 5,080,108
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 45,077,251 456,053 45,533,304
Restricted for:

Excess surplus 1,751,311 1,751,311

Capital reserve 3,540,000 3,540,000

Emergency reserve 250,000 250,000
Unrestricted {deficit) (16,068,657} 140,853 {(15,927,804)

Total Net Position $ 34,549,905 g 506,906  $ 35,146,811

See accompanying hotes (o the basic financial statements,




1] 1 ran:
Governmental aclivities:
Tnsiruction:
Regular
Special education
Other instruction
Support services:
Swident and instruclion refated sesvices
School adminisivation services
General and business administration services
Operation and maintenance of
plant services
Pupil transporialion
Special schools
[nterest and other costs on long-term debt
Tolal governmental activities

Business-lype aclivities:
Faod Service
Total business-type activilies

Total primary government

BOARD OF EBUCATION

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Strtement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Program Reveaues

Exhibit A-2

Net (Bxjrensej Revenue and
Changes in Net Posltlon

Opersting Caplial
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmenlal Business-type
Expenses Services Contribulions | Totnt
$ 37,096,620 s 354,253 $ 121,156 § 185,339 $ {16,265,872) $ {36,285,872)
12,844,136 722,429 432,121,707 {33,121,707)
3,779,806 {3,770,806) {3,770,806)
13,303,690 58,289 {13,244,801) {13,244,801}
4,709,445 (4,702,445} {4,709,445)
4,016,449 (4,016,449} (4,016,449
7,614,503 (7.614,503) {7,644,503)
2,721,247 09,496 (2,621,754 (2,621,751)
114,075 {314,075) {314,67%)
403,918 . - - (1,403,918) (1,403,518
§7,794,289 453,749 1,101,874 155,13¢ (86,083,127) {B6,085,327)
1,027,281 852,827 51,973 - - 5§ (£22,481) {122,481}
1,027.28] 852,827 51,973 - - (822,481) {122,481}
3 £8,821,570 $ 1,306,576 s 1,153,847 § 155,339 (86,083,327 (122,480) {86,205,308)
General revenues;
Taxes.
Property 1axes, levied for general purposes 65,360,364 65,360,364
Property taxes, levied for debt service 1,156,993 3,156,995
State aid not restricled 19,495,653 19,495,653
Investment Earninps 164,893 164,893
Miscellanecus {ncome 579,693 - 579,693
Total general revenues 88,757,598 - 88,757,598
Change in Net Pesitlon 2,674,2T (122,481) 2,551,196
Nel Positionr—beginning 31,875,634 712,387 32,595024
Net Position—ending $ 34,549,905 % 596,906 5 35146814
22
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Exhiblt B-1
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Bzlance Sheet
Gavernmental Funds
June 38, 2020

Major Funds

Special Capital I3T] Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Eund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,322,594 3 98,130 3 44,553 $ 3465217
Intergovermmental Accounts Receivable
State 637,053 9,662 646,715
Federal 48,534 48,534
Local 10 10
Other accownts receivablo 12,668 12,668
Interfunds receivable 10,412 3 5411 24,753 40,576
Restricied cash and cash equivaleats 3,750,000 325099 4,115,999
Total Assets 8 7,772,037 % 156,326  § 330410 8 69306 §  §320779
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 619,845 $ 23311 $ 306,657 s 949,823
Interfunds payable 5411 24,753 30,164
Paynble 1o state government 9,854 9,854
Usnearned revenue 279,150 123,151 402,301
Total Liabilities 904,406 156,326 331410 1,392,142
Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Excess surplus - current ygar 1,475,887 1,475,387
Excess surplus - designated for
subsequient year's expenditures 275,424 ’ 275424
Capital reserve 3,540,006 3,540,000
Emergency reserve 250,006 250,000
Diebt service $ 69,306 69,306
Assigned to:
Other Purposes 199.99G 199,990
Unassigned £,127,030 1,127,030
Total Fund Balances 6,868,331 - - 69,306 6,937,637
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 7,772,737 $ 156,326 s 331410 $ 69,306 8,329,779

Amounts reporied for govermmental activities in the statement of
net position (A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activilies are not finnncial resources and therefore
are not reported in the funds. The cost of the assets is $129,864,988and the
acctmulated depreciption is $42,502,907. See Note 6. 87,362,081

Long-term Habilities, including bonds payable, ebligations under capital leases and
compensated absences, are not due and payable in the current period and sherefore
are not reported as Habilisies in the funds, See Note 7, (44,113,827)

Acenied interest an long-term debt is nat due and payabie in
the curresd period mnd therefore is not reported as a lability
iet the funds. (674,426}

Losses arising from the issuance of refunding bonds that are a
resull of the difference in the carrying value of the refunded bonds and
the bonds are deferred and amorlized over the fife of the bonds. 1311428

Deferred pension costs ity govermmental activities are not financiak
resources and are therefore not reported in the funds. (2,492,784)

Acceried pension confributions for the June 30, 2020 plan year end are

1ol paid swith current ecanomic resaurces and are therefore not

reported as a lability in the Ginds, but are included in accounts

payable in the government-wide stateaient of net position. (B03,568)

Net pension Hability is not due and payable in the current period amnd

therefore ks not reporied as a liability in the funds. (12,976,236)
MNet position of goverzmenta activities § 34549905

See accompanying notes fo the basic financial statements. 23



Exhibif B-2
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTREICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Statemenl of Reveanes, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances
Governmental Fands
Year Eaded June 36, 2020

Major Funds

Speelnt Capital Debl TFotal
General Revenns Projecis Service Gavernmental
Fand Fund Fund Fund Funds
REYENUES
Laocal sources:
Lecal tax Jevy % 65,360,364 £ 3156995 § 68517359
Tuitian charges 354,233 354,253
Transportation fees 99,496 99,456
Intezest earned on investments 144,577 $ 20,116 164,893
Miscellaneous 579,691 § 267,100 - - 847,393
Tolal - Local Sources 66,518,383 261,700 20316 3,156,995 69,983,354
State sources 14,486,153 176,966 215,364 14,878,443
Federal sources - 812,547 - - 812,547
Tolal Revenues 81,024,496 1,257,213 20,316 3,372,359 85,674,384
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Reguiar instruction 22,402,812 321,156 22,723,968
Special education instruction 5,026,410 722,429 6,648,859
Oiher instruction 2,381,187 2,381,187
Suppon services and undistributed costs:
Tuilioni 2,216,158 2,216,158
Adtendance/social work 64,137 64,137
Health services 608,676 608,676
Other support services 5,132,600 58,289 5,196,889
Improyemens of instraction 781,444 781,444
Sehoo! library 823,06) 823,061
Instructional stafftraining 737,407 7137407
General administyation services 967,010 967,010
Sehool administration services 2,819,903 2,819,903
Central services . 14,781 214,784
Administrative information technology 749,097 749,097
Required mnintenance of school facility 894,714 894,744
Gperations of plant services 4,007 930 4,007,990
Care and upkeep of grounds 222,256 222,256
Security 182,106 182,106
Pupil transporiation services 2,706,324 2,706,324
Unallecated benefits 10,927,700 19,927,700
Cn-behalf TIAF social security, medical, disability and
pension conteibutions 116,690 11LL1G690
Dbt service:
Principal 287,445 2,044,800 2,331,449
Interest 26,813 1,457,855 1,554,668
Special schools 187,967 187,967
Capilal outlay 1,681,092 155,339 2,471,083 - 4,309,514
Total Bxpenditures 79,026,804 1,257,213 2,471,083 3,501,855 86,261,955
Lxcess (Deficiensy) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 1,994,692 - (2,452,767) {129,496} (587,571)
OTIER FINANCING SOURCES AND {USES) '
Transfers in 20,316 20,316
Transfers {(out) (20,316) - {26,316}
Total Other Financing Sourtes and (Uses) - - (20,318) 20,316 -
Nel change in fund balances 1,994,692 - (2,473,083) {109,180} (587,571)
Fund Balance—July | 4.873,63% - 2,471,083 178,486 7,525,208
Fund Balance-—June 3¢ $ 6868331 $ - $ - 3 69306 $ 4937617

The reconcitintion of the fund balances of governmental funds to the net position of governmental activities in the statemen off
activities is preseated in an accempanying schedule (B-3).

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 24



BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Total net chhange in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2) $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital asset (capital outlay) additions exceeded depreciation expense in the petiod.

Depreciation expense $ (3,441,323)
Capital additions 4,187,560

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and Is not reported in the statement of activities,

Repayment of capital lease principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and is not reported in the statement of activities,

Governmenta! funds report the effect of premiums and similar items when the debt is first
issued, whereas the amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.
This represents the following related 1o the premiums on bonds,

Amortization of premium

Governmental funds report the effect of defeasances and similar items when the debt is first
issued, whereas the amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities,
This represents the following related to the deferred loss of refunding,
Amortization of deferred loss

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities is accrued,
regardless of when due. [n the governmental funds, interest is reported when due, The difference
in accrued interest is an increase in the reconciliation,

In the statement of activities, certain operaling expenses, ¢.g., compensated absences (vacations and
unused sick pay) are measured by the amounts earned during the year, In the governmental funds,
however, expenditures for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid).
When the earned amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is reduction in the reconciliation;
when the paid amount exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition in the reconciliation.

Certain expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds,

Pension expense

Change in net position of goevernmental activities (A-2}) b

See accompanying noles to the basic financial statements,

Exhibit B-3

{587,571)

746,177

2,044,000

287,448

267,799

(154,540)

37,492

242

33,224

2,674,271
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Exhibit B-4
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS

Proprietary Fund
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2020
Major Enterprise Fund
Food Service
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 263,946
Accounts receivable:
State 16
Federal 1,009
Other 11,937
Inventories 12,663
Total Current Assets 289,571
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets:
Depreciable:
Furniture, machinery and equipment 822,003
Less accumulated depreciation (365,950)
Total Capital Assets, net 456,053
Total Assets 745,624
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 33,325
Unearned revenue 115,393
Total Current Liabilities 148,718
NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets 456,053
Unrestricted 140,853
Total Net Position $ 596,906

See accompanying nofes lo the basic financial statemenis. 26




Exhibit B-5
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Proprietary Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Major Enterprise Fund
Food Service

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services:

Daily sales - reimbursable programs $ 207,295
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs 645,532
Total Operating Revenues 852,827
Operating Expenses:

Cost of sales - reimbursable programs 269,834
Cost of sales - non-reimbursable programs 154,240
Salaries 335,045
 Employee benefits 28,660
Other purchased services 16,038
Management fee 91,300

Supplies and materials 67,519 -
Miscellaneous 24,693
Depreciation 39,952
Total Operating Expenses 1,027,281

Operating Income (174,454)

Nonoperating Revenues:
State sources:

State school funch program 3,026
Federal sources:
National schoo! lunch program 31,562
Food donation program 17,385
Total Nonoperating Revenues 51,973
Change in Net Position (122,481)
Total Net Position—Beginning ‘ 719,387
Total Net Position——Ending $ 596,906

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statenents, 27




BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Proprictary Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 384, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to employeces
Payments for employee benefits
Payments to suppliers
Net cash (used for) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State sources
Federal sources
Food donation program
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets
Net cash (used for) capital and related financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating (loss) to net cash
(used for) operating activities:
Operating (loss)
Adjustiments to reconcile operating (loss) to net cash
{used for) operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and kiabilities:
Increase in inventories
Increase in other accounts receivable
Increase in unearned revenue
Decrease in accounts payable
Total adjustments
Net cash {used for} operating activities

Noncash norncapital financing activities:

$ 873,215
(335,045)
(28,660)
(655,290)
(145,780)

3,356

Exhibit B-6

Major Enterprise Fund
Food Service

33,576

19,888
56,820

(14,086)
(14,086)

{103,046
366,992
5263946

$ (i74,454)

39,952

(3,629)
(2,932)
23,320

(28,037)
28,674

$ 145,780

The District received $19,888 of food commodities from the U.S. Department of Agriculture for the year

ended June 39, 2020,

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2020

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Interfund payable
Payroll deductions and withholdings payable
Unemployment claims payable
Due to student groups

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Heid in trust for unemployment
claims

Held in trust for scholarships

See accompanying noles fo the basic financial statements.

Exhibit B-7

Unemployment Private-
Compensation Purpose
Trast Scholarship  Agency
Fund Fund Fund
$ 379,584 $ 43983 3 668,230
379,584 43,983 § 668,236
8 15,412
156,594
47,625
N 501230
47,625 $ 668,236
$ 331,959
$ 43983
29




Exhibit B-8
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Unemployment Private-
Compensation Purpose
Trust Scholarship
Fund Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employee $ 67,551
Other - $ 16,132
Total Contributions 67,551 16,132
Investment earnings:
Interest 5,044 709
Total investment earnings 5,044 709
Total Additions 72,595 16,841
DEDUCTIONS
Unemployment claims 53,665
Scholarships awarded - 14,020
Total Deductions 53,665 14,020
Change in Net Position 18,930 2,821
Net Position—beginning 313,029 41,162
Net Position—ending 3 331,959 % 43,983

See accompanying notes to the baste financial siatements. 30




School District of the Chathams

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Board of Education (“Board”) of the School District of the Chathams
(“District”) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (“GAAP”) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (“GASB”) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The more significant of the District’s accounting policies are
described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary government, b) organizations for which the
primary government is financially accountable, and c¢) other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the notion of financial accountability. A
primary government is financially accountable for the organizations that make up its [egal entity. It is
also financially accountable for legally separate organizations if its officials appoint a voting majority of
an organization’s governing body and either it is able to impose its will on that organization or there is a
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial
burdens on, the primary government. A primary government may also be financially accountable for
governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent on it.

The District, as the primary government for financial reporting entity purposes, has oversight
responsibility and control over all activities related to the School District of the Chathams in Chatham,
New Jersey. The District receives funding from local, state, and federal government sources and must
comply with the requirements of these funding source entities.

The District has no component units that are required to be included within the reporting entity, as set
forth in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The Government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the District. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements, Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
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School District of the Chathams

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The statement of activities demonsirates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function, Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
function. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and the major individual proprietary fund are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements. The New Jersey Department of Education requires all non-
fiduciary funds to be reported as major to promote consistency among the school districts in the State of
New Jersey.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay Habilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
District considers revenues to be available if they are coliected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences, pension and capital leases are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, interest, and state aid associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be

susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal year. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the District receives cash.
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School District of the Chathams

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
The District has reported the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund, Included are
certain expenditures for vehicles and moveable instructional or non-instructional equipment, which
are classified in the capital outlay subfund.

Special Revenue Fund. The District maintains one combined special revenue fund which includes
the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for
specified purposes, other than debt service or capital projects.

Capital Projects Fund. The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial
resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to an expenditure for capital outlays, including
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other assets (other than those financed
by proprietary funds).

Debt Service Fund: The debt service fund accounts for and reports the financial resources that are
restricted, committed or assigned for the payment of principal and interest on long-term general
obligation debt of governmental funds.

The District reports the following major proprietary fund:

Food Service Enterprise Fund. The food service entetprise fund accounts for all revenues and
expenses pertaining to cafeteria operations, The food service enterptise fund is utilized to account for
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The
stated intent is that the cost (i.e., expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing
goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through
user charges.

Additionally, the District reports the following fiduciary fund types:

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District on behalf of outside parties,
including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the District and include the
unemployment compensation and private purpose scholarship trust funds and agency funds. The
uncmployment compensation trust fund and private-purpose scholarship trust funds are accounted for
using the economic resources measurement focus. Agency funds are purely custodial (assets equal
liabilities) and thus do not involve measurements of results of operations. The following is a
description of the fiduciary funds of the District.
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School District of the Chathams

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Trust Funds: The unemployment compensation fund is used to account for contributions from the
District and employees and interest carned on the balance as well as payments to the State for
reimbursement of unemployment claims, The private-purpose scholarship fund is utilized to provide
scholarships to students and to account for the related transactions.

Agency Funds (Payroll and Student Activity Fund): Agency funds are used to account for the assets
that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do
not involve measurement of results of operations.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) fees charged to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

As a general rule the effect of internal activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements,

The enterprise fund distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the District’s enterprise fund are charges for sales of food, Operating expenses for the
enterprise fund include the cost of sales, salary expenses, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.

The District reports unearned revenue on its balance sheets and statements of net position. Uneared
revenue arises when resources are received by the District before it has legal claim to them, as when
federal assistance is received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods,
when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the District has a legal claim to the resources,
the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheets and statements of net position and
revenue is recognized.

Ad Valorem (Property) taxes are susceptible to accrual as, under New Jersey State Statute, a
municipality is required to remit fo its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted
upon or certified prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as
revenue (accrued) at the statt of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and available. The
District is entitled to receive moneys under the established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is
considered to be an “accounts receivable.”
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School District of the Chathams

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The County Board of Taxation is responsible for the assessment of properties and the Borough and
Township Tax Collectors are responsible for collection of taxes. Assessments are certified and taxes are
levied on January 1; taxes are due February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1. Unpaid taxes are
considered delinquent the following January 1 and are then subject to lien,

D. Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue and
debt service funds, Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting and the special
revenue fund uses a non-GAAP budget (budgetary basis). The legal level of budgetary control is
established at line item accounts within each fund, Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most
specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referred in
N.J.A.C. 6A:23. The District must approve all budget amendments and certain transfers must be
approved by the County Supetintendent of Schools. The District did make transfers during the year,
which are identified on schedules C-1 and C-2, Some of the transfers made were in significant amounts,
but all were in the normal course of operations, properly approved and in compliance with State
requirements.

The overexpenditures in the general fund is due to the inclusion of the non-budgeted on behalf payments
made by the State of New Jersey as District expenditures. These amounts are offset by related revenues
and as such do not represent budgetary overexpenditures.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device
during the year. For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary
basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States with the exception
of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last two state aid payments for budgetary purposes
only and the special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an
extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Open encumbrances at year-
end are reappropriated in the subsequent year’s budget. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal
year-end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary
basis. The grant accounting budgelaty basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary
basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the
GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of
GAAP basis financial reports.
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School District of the Chathams

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
E, Interfund Receivables/Payables

Interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or services
rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year.

F, Inventories

Inventories, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund, are recorded
as an expenditure during the year of purchase.

Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, first-out
(FIFO) method and the District uses the consumption method for expensing inventory, At June 30,
2020, the District had inventories in the Food Service Enterprise Fund in the amount of $12,663, of
which, the portion of unused Food Donation Program commodities in the amount of $4,151 is reported
as unearned revenue.

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, property, plant and equipment and construction in progress, are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements, Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of
more than $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.

Such assets are recorded at historical cost or through estimation procedures performed by an
independent appraisal company. Donated capital assets are valued at their acquisition value on the date
of acquisition, The costs of normal repairs and maintenance that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend the assets lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant and equipment of the District is depreciated using the straight line method, The
following estimated useful lives are used to compute depreciation:

Years
Machinery and equipment 2-20
Buildings 50
Building improvements 20
Vehicles 5-10
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School District of the Chathams

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

L. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)
H. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District has two items that qualify for
reporting in this category, including deferred amounts from the refunding of debt and deferred amounts
related to pensions, In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has one item that
qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to pensions.

I. Compensated Absences

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the District’s personnel
policies. In the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation, Sick leave
benefits provide for ordinary sick pay and begin vesting with the employee after one year of service.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the District is recorded in the government-wide
financial statements and includes salary related payments. The liability for vested compensated
absences of the proprietary fund type is recorded within that fund as the benefits accrue to employees.
As of June 30, 2020, a liability existed for compensated absences in the government-wide financial
statements in the amount of $517,569 and no liability existed for compensated absences in the
proprietary fund.

J. Deferred Loss on Refunding of Debt

Deferred loss on refunding arising from the issuance of refunding bonds is recorded as a deferred
outflow of resources. It is amortized in a systematic and rational manner over the duration of the related
debt as a component of interest expense. The amortization expense for the year ended June 30, 2020
amounted to $154,540. As of June 30, 2020, the District has an unamortized balance of $1,311,428
recorded as a deferred outflow of resources.
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School District of the Chathams

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
K. Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash received from local grants, which has
been received but not yet earned. Unearned revenue in the general fund represents cash received for
2020-21 tuition for the District’s Inclusion Preschool. Unearned revenue in the enterprise fund consists
of unused donated food commodities and student deposits for future food purchases,

L. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.

M. Fund Balances

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions
(“GASB 54”) established fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on
the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources reported in governmental funds. Under GASB 54, fund balances in the governmental
funds financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting and classified
into the following five categories, as defined below:

1} Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Assels
included in this fund balance category include prepaid assets, inventories, long-term
receivables, and corpus of any permanent funds.

2) Restricted - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated
by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation.

3) Committed - includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes imposed
by a formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. The
District’s highest level of decision-making authority is the Board of Education (the
“Board™) and formal action is taken by resolution of the Board at publicly held meetings.
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School District of the Chathams

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Once committed, amounts cannot be used for other purposes unless the Board revises or
changes the specified use by taking the same action (resolution) taken to originally
commit these funds.

4) Assigned — amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do
not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent is expressed by
either the Board or Business Administrator, to whom the Board has delegated the
authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes, including the encumbering
of funds.

5) Unassigned - includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications in
the general fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned
to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific
purposes within the general fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports a
positive unassigned fund balance amount. In the other governmental funds, if
expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted, committed or
assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund
balance.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. For the unrestricted fund
balance, the District first spends committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally, unassigned
funds.

Of the $6,868,331 of fund balances in the General Fund, $199,990 of encumbrances is assigned to
other purposes, $1,475,887 has been restricted for excess surplus-current year, $275,424 has been
restricted for prior year excess surplus that has been designated for subsequent year’s expenditures,
$3,540,000 has been restricted for the capital reserve, $250,000 has been restricted for emergency
reserve and $1,127,030 is classified as unassigned. The District also has $69,306 in the Debt
Service Fund, which is restricted for debt service, Of this amount, $48,990 has been appropriated in
the 2020-21 approved budget.

N. Net Pasition

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources and liabilities in the Government-wide financial statements. Net investment in
capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balance of any long-term debt used to build or acquire the capital assets. Net positions are reported
as resiricted in the Government-wide and fund financial statements when there are limitations
imposed on their use through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or
regulations of other governments,
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School District of the Chathams

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
0. Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. '

P. On-Behalf Payments

Revenues and expenditures of the general fund include payments made or reimbursed by the State
of New Jersey for social security and post-retirement pension and medical contributions for certified
teachers and other members of the New Jersey Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund. Additionally,
revenues and expenses related to on-behalf pension contributions in the government-wide financial
statements have been increased by $3,978,019 to adjust for the full accrual basis expense incurred by the
State of New Jersey during the most recent measurement period. The amounts are not required to be
included in the District’s annual budget,

Q. Calculation of Excess Surplus

The designation for restricted fund balance - excess surplus is a required calculation pursuant to N.J.S.A.
18A:7F-7, as amended. New Jersey school districts are required to reserve fund balance of the general
fund at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as
budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years’ budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2020
was $1,751,311. Of this amount, $275,424 has been appropriated in the 2020-21 budget and the
remaining $1,475,887 will be appropriated in the 2021-22 budget.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
R. GASB Pronouncements
Recently Issued

The GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities in January 2017, This Statement
establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting for fiduciary activities, The
requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Due lo
the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year. Management has not
determined the impact of the Statement on the financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases in June 2017, This Statement establishes standards of
accounting and financial reporting for leases by lessees and lessors. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019, Due to the COVID-19
pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by eighteen months. Management has not
determined the impact of the Statement on the financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period in June 2018. This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest
cost incurred before the end of a construction period. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019, Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the
effective date has been postponed by one year. Management has not determined the impact of the
Statement on the financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests — an Amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 61 in August 2018, This Statement modifies previous guidance for
reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization. This Statement
also provides guidance for reporting a component unit if a government acquires a 100 percent
equity interest in that component unit. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2018, Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been
postponed by one year. Management has determined that this Statement did not impact the
District’s financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debi Obligations in May 2019. This Statement
establishes a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers to eliminale diversity in
practice. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15,
2020. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one yeat,
Management has not determined the impact of the Statement on the financial statements.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
S. Subsequent Events

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions that occurred between June 30,
2020 and January 25, 2021, the date that the financial statements were available for issuance. The
effect of those events and f{ransactions that provide additional pertinent information about
conditions that existed at the balance sheet and statement of net position date, have been recognized
in the accompanying financial statements.

As of June 30, 2020, District operations and the ways in which education is provided have been
disrupted by the outbreak of the novel coronavirus COVID-19. Going forward, COVID-19 could
further limit the District’s operations, including unexpected deferrals of tax payments from the
municipality, deferrals or reductions in state aid or an increase in expenses associated with this or
any other potential infectious disease outbreak. District management cannot reasonably predict how
long the Pandemic in New Jersey is expected to last and how the outbreak may impact the financial
condition or operations of the District, District management continues to monitor the Pandemic and
plans to take action to address any significant impact on future operations.

2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net position — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that long-term liabilities,
including bonds payable and related unamortized premiums, obligation under capital lease and
compensated absences payable are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds. The details of this $44,113,827 difference are as follows:

Bonds payable $ 37,075,000
Premium on bonds 2,700,050
Obligation under capital lease 3,821,208
Compensated absences payable 517,569
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance-total governmental
funds to arrive at net position — governmental activities $44,113,827
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
3. Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, amounts on deposit and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less, Investments are stated at fair value in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Cerfain Invesiments
and for External Investment Pools and Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.
The Board classifies certificates of deposit, which have original maturity dates of more than three
months but less than twelve months from the date of purchase, as investments and are stated at cost, All
other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions
they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may
be purchased by New Jersey school districts.

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit
Protection Act (“‘GUDPA”). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units from a loss of
funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et, seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units.
The statute requites that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless
such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include savings and loan
institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks, the deposits of which are federally
insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five
percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of governmental
units, If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the governmental units.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in
New Jersey that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Savings and
Loan Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the United States that insures deposits made in
public depositories. School districts are also permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New
Jersey Cash Management Fund and the New Jersey Asset and Rebate Management Fund.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
3. Deposits and Investments (continued)

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that
exceed depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of collected public
funds on deposit.

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital
funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to
100% of the amount exceeding 75%.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal Reserve Bank
of Phitadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking institution that is a member of
the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.

Operating cash accounts are held in the District’s name by several commercial banking institutions.
At June 30, 2020, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits was $8,937,025, which includes
restricted cash held with fiscal agents in the amount of $325,999 related to bond proceeds not yet
spent, and the bank balance was $9,599,815. Of the bank balance, $253,058 of the District’s cash
deposits on June 30, 2020 was secured by federal depository insurance company. The New Jersey
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA) covered the bank balance of $8,355,362,
$535,415 held in the District agency accounts and the funds held with fiscal agents are not covered
by GUDPA.
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3. Deposits and Investments (continued)

Pursvant to GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (“GASB 407), the
District’s operating cash accounts are profiled in order to determine exposure, if any, to Custodial Credit
Risk (risk that in the event of failure of the counterparty the District would not be able to recover the
value of its deposits and investments). Deposits are considered to be exposed to Custodial Credit Risk if
they are: uncollateralized (securities not pledged to the depositor), collateralized with securities held by
the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the financial institution’s trust
department or agent but not in the government’s name.

The District does not have a policy for the management of custodial credit risk, other than depositing all
of its funds in banks covered by GUDPA, At least five percent of the District’s deposits were fully
collateralized by funds held by the financial institution, but not in the name of the District. Due to the
nature of GUDPA, further information is not available regarding the full amount that is collateralized.

Investments
New Jersey statutes permit the District to purchase the following types of securities:
a. Bonds and other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the United States.

b. Bonds of any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National
Mortgage Agency or of any United States Bank, which have a maturity date not greater than
twelve months from the date of purchase.

c. New Jersey Cash Management Fund and New Jersey Asset and Rebate Management Fund.

Custodial Credit Risk: Pursuant to GASB 40, the District did not have any investments that were
exposed to custodial credit risk. The District does not have a policy for custodial credit risk.

Credit Risk: The District does not have an investment policy regarding the management of credit risk.
GASB 40 requires that disclosure be made as to the credit rating of all debt security investments except
for obligations of the U.S. government or investments guaranteed by the U.S. government. The District
did not have any investments at June 30, 2020.

Interest Rate Risk: The District does not have a policy to limit interest rate risk. The District did not
have any investments at June 30, 2020,

Concentration of Credit Risk: The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any
one issuer. The District did not have any investments at June 30, 2020.
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4, Capital Reserve Account

A capital reserve account was established by the Board for the accumulation of funds for use as capital
outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general
fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the District’s
approved Long-Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the Department, a
district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general
fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end (June 1 to June 30) of
any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line — item appropriation amounts, or both, A district
may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained
either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special
elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S. 4. 19:60-2, Pursuant to NJA.C. 6A:23A-14,1(g), the balance
in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its
approved LREP,

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2019 $ 2,540,000
Deposits:
Approved by Board Resolution at the
June 2020 Board of Education Meeting 2,000,000
Withdrawal:
Budgeted Withdrawal (1.000,000)
Ending balance, June 30, 2020 $ 3,540,000

$800,000 of this amount was appropriated in the 2020-21 approved budget. The balance is available for
use in a DOE approved facilities project, consistent with the District’s Long Range Facilities Plan
(LRFP). The June 30, 2020 balance of local support costs of uncompleted projects was in excess of the
amount held in the capital reserve account.

5. Emergency Reserve Account

In the 2019-20 fiscal year, the District established a reserve to be used to accumulate funds for the
current expense emergency reserve, and in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-41 and N.J.A.C.
6A:23A-14.4(a)(1), passed a board resolution authorizing the establishment of an emergency
reserve account in the District’s General Fund. The emergency reserve balance is $250,000 as of
June 30, 2020.
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6. Capital Assets

The following schedule is a summarization of the governmental activities changes in capital assets for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020:

Beginning Reallocation/  Ending
Balance Increases Transfers Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land § 11,616,511 $11,616,511
Construction in progress 1,512,702 § 2,376,775 $ (75,798) 3,813,679
Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 13,129,213 2,376,775 (75,798) 15,430,190
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and building 98,556,830 902,884 99,459,714
improvements
Land improvements 8,718,988 127,384 75,798 8,622,170
Machinery, equipment and
vehicles 5,272,457 780,457 6,052,914
Total capital assets being
depreciated 112,548,275 1,810,725 75,798 114,434,798
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buiidings and building
improvements (30,219,993) (2,617,461 (32,837,454)
Land improvements (5,261,840) (340,521) (5,602,361)
Machinery, equipment and
vehicles (3,579,751) (483,341) (4,063,092)
Total accumulated depreciation (39,061,584)  (3,441,323) (42,502,907)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 73,486,691 {1,630,598) 75,798 71,931,891
Governmental activities capital
assets, net $ 86615904 § 746,177 $ - $ 87,362,081
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6. Capital Assets (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows:

Instruction;

Regular $ 1,529,861
Special education 447,674
Other 160,328
Support services:
Student and instruction related services 553,001
School administration services 189,867
General and business administration services 177,140
Operation and maintenance of plant services 370,796
Special schools 12,656
Total depreciation expense — governmental activities $ 3,441,323

The following schedule is a summarization of business-type activity changes in capital assets for the
year ended June 30, 2020;

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Balance

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Building improvements $ 305298 $ 13,188 $ 318,486

Machinery and equipment 502,619 898 503,517

Total capital assets, being 807,917 14,086 822,003
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Building improvements (14,565) (14,714) (29,279)
Machinery and equipment (311,433) (25,238)  (336,671)
Total accumulated depreciation (325,998) (39,952)  (365,950)
Total business-type activities
capital assets, net $ 481919 § (25,866) § 456,053
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7. Long-Term Liabilities

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions  Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities: '
Bonds payable $39,119,000 $ (2,044,000 $37,075,000 $2,160,000
Premium on bonds 2,967,849 (267,799) 2,700,050 267,799
Compensated absences payable 517,811 § 41,008 (41,250) 517,569 35,275
Obligations under capital leases 4,108,656 (287,448) 3,821,208 284,490
Sub-total 46,713,316 41,008 (2,640,497) 44,113,827 2,747,564
Net pension liability 14,398,532 (1,422,296) 12,976,236
Total governmental activities long-
term liabilities $61,111,848 $ 41,008 § (4,062,793) $57,090,063 $2,747,564

The compensated absences payable, net pension liability and obligations under capital leases are
expected to be paid from general fund appropriations. Bonds payable are expected to be paid from debt
service fund appropriations.

Bonds Payable

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law or by the voters of the municipalities through
referendums, All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness.
Bonds issued by the District are general obligation bonds.

Bonds payable at June 30, 2020 are comprised of the following issues:

$16,275,000, Series 2014A refunding bonds, due in annual installments ranging from $400,000 to
$2,695,000 through July 2030 at interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%. There is no defeased debt
still outstanding at June 30, 2020.

$12,270,000, Series 2014B refunding bonds, due in annual installments ranging from $1,080,000 to
$1,385,000 through January 2026 at interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%. There is no defeased
debt still outstanding at June 30, 2020,

$15,864,000, Series 2017 school bonds, due in annual instaliments ranging from $605,000 to
$1,200,000 through January 2037 at interest rates ranging from 2.00% to 3.25%.
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Principal and interest due on all bonds outstanding is as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending June 30:
2021 $ 2,160,000 § 1,380,175 $ 3,540,175
2022 2,280,000 1,296,275 3,576,275
2023 2,375,000 1,205,625 3,580,625
2024 2,465,000 1,108,875 3,573,875
2025 2,555,000 1,007,375 3,562,375
2026-2030 14,740,000 3,273,925 18,013,925
2031-2035 8,100,000 973,400 9,073,400
2036-2037 2,400,000 117,000 2,517,000

$37,075,000 $10,362,650 $47,437,650

Obligation Under Capital Lease

The District has a capital lease outstanding for an Energy Savings Improvement Plan lease which has an
interest rate of 2.40%. The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under the
capital lease and the present value of the net future minimum lease payments at June 30, 2020

Amount
Fiscal year ending June 30:
2021 ) $ 374,427
2022 327,160
2023 335,079
2024 343,178
2025 351,462
2026-2030 1,888,327
2031-2032 820,264
Total minimum lease payment 4,439,899
Less amount representing interest (618,691)
Present value of net future minimum lease payments $ 3,821,208

Capital assets paid for with proceeds from the capital lease totaled $5,011,352, with accumulated
depreciation of $876,987 as of June 30, 2020. '
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8. Operating Leases

The District has commitments to lease copiers, mail equipment and other equipment under operating
leases which expire in the 2025 fiscal year. Total operating lease payments made during the year ended
June 30, 2020 were $139,224, Future lease payments are as follows:

Year ending June 30:
2021 $ 121,051
2022 74,272
2023 64,116
2024 64,011
2025 20,265
Total lease payments $ 343,715

9. Pension Plans
Plan Descriptions

A substantial number of the District’s employees participate in one of the following contributory defined
benefit public employee retirement systems which have been established by State statute: the Teachers’
Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) or the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS). These
systems are sponsored and administered by the State of New Jersey. The Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund Retirement System is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan, with a special
funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New
Jersey on behalf of the Board and the system’s other related non-contributing employers, The Public
Employees’ Retirement System is considered a cost-sharing muitiple-employer plan:

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund

The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund was established in January 1955 under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all fuil
time public school employees in the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and
vesting occurs after 10 years of service for pension benefits and 25 years for health care coverage.
Age eligibility and benefit provisions were affected by Chapters 92 and 103, P.L. 2007, Chapter 89,
P.L. 2008, Chapter'1, P.L. 2010, and Chapter 78, P.L. 2011. Members are classified into one of five
tiers dependent upon the date of their enrollment. Tier 1, 2 and 3 members are eligible to retire at
age 60, 60, and 62, respectively with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/55th of the
average annual compensation for the highest three fiscal years’ compensation for each year of
membership during years of credited service. Tier 4 and 5 members are eligible to retire at age 62
and 65, respectively, with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/60th of the average annual
compensation for the highest five fiscal years’ compensation for each year of membership during
years of credited service. Anyone who retires early and is under their respective tier’s retirement.
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age receives retirement benefits as calculated in the above mentioned formulas but at a reduced rate
in accordance with applicable New Jersey Statute based upon their tier.

Public Employee’s Retirement System

The Public Employees’ Retirement System was established in January 1955 under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all
fulltime employees of the State or any county, municipality, school district or public agency,
provided the employee is not a member of another State-administered retirement system. Age
eligibility and benefit provisions were affected by Chapters 92 and 103, P.L. 2007, Chapter 89, P.L,
2008, Chapter 1, P.L. 2010, and Chapter 78, P.L. 2011. Members ate classified into one of five tiers
dependent upon the date of their enroliment. Tier 1, 2 and 3 members are eligible to retire at age 60,
60, and 62, respectively with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/55th of the average
annual compensation for the highest three fiscal years” compensation for each year of membership
during years of credited service. Tier 4 and 5 members are eligible to retire at age 62 and 65,
respectively with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/60th of the average annual
compensation for the highest five fiscal years’ compensation for each year of membership during
years of credited service. Anyone who retires early and is under their respective tier’s retirement
age receives retirement benefits as calculated in the above mentioned formulas but at a reduced rate
in accordance with applicable New Jersey Statute based upon their tier.

Funding Policy

The contribution policy is set by New Jersey State Statutes and contributions are required by active
members and contributing members. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by
State of New Jersey legislation. Under the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, employee
contribution rates for TPAF and PERS are 7.5% of employees’ annual compensation. Employers
are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both the TPAF and PERS,

The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for noncontributory death benefits,
disability insurance and post-retirement medical premiums, Under current statute the Board is a
non-coniributing employer of the TPAF.

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the State of New Jersey contributed $8,796,103 to the TPAF
for on-behalf medical, disability insurance and pension contributions on behalf of the District.
Also, in accordance with N.I.S.A, 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District
$2,314,587 during the year ended June 30, 2020 for the employer’s share of social security
contributions for TPAF members as calculated on their base salaries. These amounts have been
included in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
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The District’s actuarially determined coniributions to PERS for each of the years ended June 30,
2020, 2019 and 2018 were $700,510, $727,387 and $683,931, respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of PERS and additions to/deductions from PERS fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS, For the purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

Public Employee’s Retivement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability of $12,976,236 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
July 1, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. The District’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2019, the District’s proportion was 0.0720162522 percent, which was a
decrease of 0.00011117178 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018,

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized full accrual pension expense of $667,280
in the government-wide financial statements. At June 30, 2020, the District reporied deferred
outflows of resources and a deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
QOutflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 232,906 § 57,323
Changes of assumptions 1,295,725 4,504,010
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 204,835
Changes in proportion and differences between
District contributions and proportionate share of
contributions 254,728 313,940
District confributions subsequent to the
measurement date 803,968 53

$ 2,587,327 § 5,080,108
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$803,968 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from school
district contributions subsequent to the measurement date. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2021 $  (306,745)
2022 (1,197,818)
2023 (1,156,212)
2024 (574,734)
2025 (61,240)

$ (3,296,749)

Actuarial Assumpfions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. This actuarial valuation
used the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation rate:
Price 2.75%
Wage 1.25%

Salary increases:

Through 2026 2.00-6.00%
based on years of service
Thereafler 3.00-7.00%

based on years of service

Investment rate of return 7.00%

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2018, It is likely that future
experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions, To the extent that actuai experience
deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated.
The more the experience deviates, the larger the impact on future financial statements.
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Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement morality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income
Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis, Post-retirement
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree
mortality table with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement rates
used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality
table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis, Mortality improvement is based
on Scale MP-2019,

Long-Term Rate of Retfurn

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00%
at June 30, 2019) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the
actuaries, The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expecting future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best
estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS’s target asset
allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Retuwin
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 4.67%
Cash equivalen{s 5.00% 2.00%
U8, Treasuries 5.00% 2.68%
Investment grade credit _ 10.00% 4.25%
High vieid 2,00% 5.37%
Private credit ‘ 6.00% 7.92%
Real asseis 2,50% 9.31%
Real estate 7.50% 8.33%
U.S. BEquity 28.00% 8.26%
Non-1,8. developed markets equity 12,50% 9.00%
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.37%
Private equity 12.00% 10.85%

100,00%
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9. Pension Plans (continued)
Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.28% as of June 30, 2019 and
5.66% as of June 30, 2018. This single blended discount rate was based on the fong-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.50% as of June
30, 2019 based on the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will
be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be
made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State employer contributed
70% of the actuarially determined contributions and the local employers contributed 100% of their
actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members
through June 30, 2057. Therefore, the long-term expected rated of return on plan investments was
applied to projected benefit payments through June 30, 2057 and the municipal bond rate was
applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the nei pension liability to changes in the
discount rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30,
2019 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the District’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.28 percent) or I-percentage-point higher (7.28 percent) than the
current rate:

At 1% At Current At 1%
Decrease Discount Rafe Increase
(5.28%) {6.28%) (7.28%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 16,391,095 $ 12,976,236 $ 10,098,734

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued financial report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System.
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9. Pension Plans (continued)
Additional Informalion

Collective balances of the Local Group at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Deferred outflows of resources $ 3,149,522,616
Deferred inflows of resources $ 7,645,087,574
Net pension liability $ 18,143,832,135
District's Proportion 0.0720162522%

Collective pension expense for the Local Group for the measurement period ended June 30, 2019 is
$974,471,686.

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pension
through the pension plan (active and inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2019, 2018, 2017,
2016, 2015 and 2014 is 5.21, 5.63, 5.48, 5.57, 5.72, and 6.44 years, respectively.

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) — Special Funding Situation

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by
the State in accordance with N.J.S.A., 18:66-33. Therefore, these local participating employers are
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State
is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not
contribute directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net
pension liability or deferred outflows ot inflows to report in the financial statements of the local
participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local participating
employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer contributing entities’ total proportionate
share of the net pension liability that is associated with the local participating employer. The State’s
proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the District as of June 30,
2019 was $176,142,260. The District’s proportionate share was $0.

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2018, which
was rolled forward to June 30, 2019, The State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the District was based on a projection of the State’s long-term contributions to the
pension plan associated with the District relative to the projected contributions by the State
associated with all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the
State’s proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the District was
02870124666 percent, which was an increase of 0.0068275308 percent from its proportion
measured as of June 30, 2018,
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9. Pension Plans (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized on-behalf pension expense and revenue in
the government-wide financial statements of $12,774,122 for contributions incurred by the State.

Actuarial assumptions

The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in
the measurement:

Inflation rate:

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary increascs:
Through 2026 1.55 - 4.45%
based on years of service
Thereafter 2,75 - 5.65%
based on years of service
Investment rate of return 7.00%

Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income
Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and 85.3% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree
mortality table with a 114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis, Disability mortality rates
were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 106,3% adjustment
for males and 100.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of
2010 on a generational basis, Mottality improvement is based on Scale MP-2019,

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00%
at June 30, 2019) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the
actvaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
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9, Pension Plans (continued)
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (continued)

combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage by adding expected inflation.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in TPAF’s target
asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Risk mitigation strategies 3.00% 4.67%
Cash equivalents 5.00% 2.00%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 2.68%
Investment grade credit 10.00% 4.25%
High yietd 2.00% 5.37%
Private credit _ 6.00% 7.92%
Real assefs 2.50% 9.31%
Real estate 7.50% - 833%
U.S. equity 28.00% 8.26%
Non-U.S, developed markets equity 12.50% 9.00%
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.37%
Private equity 12.00% 10.85%

100.00%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.60% as of June 30, 2019 and
4.86% as of June 30, 2018. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term rate of
return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.50% as of Jung 30,

2019 based on the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will

be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be
made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State contributed 70% of the

actuarially determined confributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciaty net position’
was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of cutrent plan members

through 2054. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to

projected benefit payments through 2054, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected

benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.
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9. Pension Plans (continued)

Sensitivity of the State’s proportionate share of the net pension Hability associated with the District
to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with
the District as of June 30, 2019 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what
the State’s proportionate share of the net pension lability associated with the District would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage-point lower (4.60 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (6.60 percent) than the current rate:

At 1% At Current At 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
{4,60%) (5.60%) (6.60%)

State's proportionate share of
the net pension Jiability
associated with the District $ 207,710,711 § 176,142,260 $ 149,950,414

Pension plan fiduciary net posifion

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued TPAF financial report.

Collective balances of the Local Group at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Deferred outflows of resources $ 10,077,460,797
Deferred inflows of resources $ 17,525,379,167
Net pension liability $  61,370,943,870

State's proportionate share associated with n
the District 0.2870124666%
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9. Pension Plans (continued)
Additional Information

Collective pension expense-Local Group for the plan for the measurement period ended June 30,
2019 is $3,642,191,152, The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that
are provided with pension through the pension plan (active and inactive employees) determined at
July 1, 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015, and 2014 is 8.04, 8.29, 8,30, 8.30, 8.30, and 8.50 years,
respectively.

10. Post-Retirement Benefits
Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The State of New Jersey reports a liability as a result of its statutory requirements to pay other post-
employment (health benefits) for State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan.
The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-employer defined
benefit OPEB plan that is administered on a pay-as-you-go basis. Accordingly, no assets are
accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. The State
Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription drug, and
Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered dependents of local education
employers. The State Health Benefits Program Act is found in New Jersey Statutes Annotated,
Title 52, Article 17.25 et.seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the program are
found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. The State of New Jersey
Division of Pension and Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for SHBP. That report may be obtained by
writing to Division of Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are legally required to
be funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f. According to
N.J.S.A, 52:14-17.32f, the State provides employer-paid coverage to employees who retire from a
board of education or county college with 25 years or more of service credit in or retires in a
disability pension from one or more of the following plans: the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity
Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) or the Alternate Benefit Program
(ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, future retirees eligible for postretirement medical
coverage who have less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay
a percentage of the cost of health care coverage in retirement provided that they retire with 25 or
more years of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the retiree will be
responsible will be determined based on the retiree’s annual retirement coverage.
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10. Post-Retirement Benefits (continued)

Certain local participating employers also provide post-retirement medical coverage to their
employees. Retirees who are not eligible for employer paid health coverage at retirement can
continue in the program if their employer participates in this program or if they are participating in
the health benefits plan of their former employer and are enrolled in Medicare Parts A and B by
paying the cost of the insurance for themselves and their covered dependents. In Fiscal Year 2019,
the State paid PRM benefits for 153,893 State and local retirees. The total nonemployer OPEB
liability does not include certain other postemployment obligations that are provided by the local
education employers.

The State’s contributions to the SHBP Fund for TPAF retirees’ post-retirement benefits on behalf of the
District for the years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018 were $2,378,483, $2,614,089 and $2,729,752
respectively, which equaled the required contributions for each year.

The State funds post-retirement medical benefits on a “pay-as-you-go” basis, which means that the
State does not pre-fund, or otherwise establish a reserve or other pool of assets against the PRM
expenses that the State may incur in future years. For Fiscal Year 2019, the State contributed
$1.908 billion to pay for pay-as-you-go PRM benefit costs incurred by covered retirees. The State’s
“pay-as-you-go” contributions have remained consistent with Fiscal Year 2018 amounts. The State
has appropriated $1.612 billion in Fiscal Year 2020 as the State’s contribution to fund pay-as-you-
go PRM costs,

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, the State is required to quantify and disclose its
obligations to pay Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) to retired plan members. This new
standard supersedes the previously issued guidance, GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, effective for Fiscal Year
2018. The State is now required to accrue a liability in all instances where statutory language
names the State as the legal obligor for benefit payments. The Fiscal Year 2019 total State OPEB
liability to provide these benefits is $76.0 billion, a decrease of $14.5 billion or 16 percent from the
$90.5 billion liability recorded in Fiscal Year 2018.

The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes
Annolated, Title 52, Article 17.25 et. seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the
program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. No assets are
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASBS No. 75.
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Total OPEB Liability
The total non-employer (State) OPERB liability from New Jersey’s plan is $41,729,081,045,

Changes in the Total Nonemployer OPEB Liabilify

Below represents the changes in the State’s portion of the OPEB liability associated with the

District for the year ended June 30, 2020:

Total OPEB Liability

Beginning Total OPEB Liability, June 30, 2018 $ 99,785,017
Changes for the year:
Service cost 4,116,979
Interest cost 3,967,884
Differences between expected and actual experience (13,434,430)
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 1,387,399
Member contributions 84,671
Gross benefit payments (2,856,392)
Net changes {(6,733,889)
Ending Total OPEB Liability, June 30, 2019 3 93,051,128

Employees covered by benefit terms

The following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Local Education June 30, 2019
Active Plan Members 216,892
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 148,051
Inactive Plan Members Entitled to but Not Yet Receiving Benefits -

Total Plan Members 364,943

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make
employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS and TPAF participants. The District’s
proportionate share percentage determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS
No. 75 is zero percent. Accordingly, the District did not recognize any portion of the collective net
OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position. The State’s proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability associated with the District as of June 30, 2020 was $93,051,128, Additional information

can be obtained from the State of New Jersey’s comprehensive annual financial report,
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Actuarial assumptions and other inputs
The total nonemployer OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation reported by the State

in the State’s most recently issued CAFR was determined using the following actuarial assumptions
and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

TPAF PERS
[nflation rate: 2.50% 2.50%
Salary increases:
Through 2026 1.55-3.05% 2.00-6.00%
based on years of service based on years of service
Thereafter 1.55-3.05% 3.00-7.00%
based on years of service based on years of service

The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2019 was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of June 30, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. The actuarial assumptions used in
the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of the actual experience studies for the
periods July 1, 2015 — June 30, 2018 and July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2018 for TPAF and PERS,
respectively.

Mortality Rates

Pretetirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy "Teachers” (TPAF/ABP) and
"General® (PERS) classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational
mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2019. Postretirement
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 "General” classification headcount-weighted mortality
table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale
MP-2019. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010 "General" classification headcount-
weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from
the central year using Scale MP-2019,

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2019 and 2018 was 3.50% and 3.87%, respectively. This reptesents
the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-
Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with
an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal
bond rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at
the municipal bond rate.
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Health Care Trend Assumplions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.7% and decreases to a 4.5% long-
term trend rate after eight years, For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fully-insured Medicare
Advantage trend rate for fiscal year 2020 are reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend is 4.5%
for all future years, For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.5% and decreases to a
4.5% long-term trend rate after eight years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is
5.0%.

The following represenis sensitivity of the Total Nonemployer OPEB liability associated wn‘h the
District to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rate

The following presents the non-employer OPEB liability associated with the District as of June 30,
2019 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the total non-employer
OPEB liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(2.50%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.50%) than the current rate:

At 1% At current At 1%
decrease discount rate increase
(2.50%) (3.50%) (4.50%)
Total OPEB Liability (Allocable to
the District and the responsibility
of the State) $ 109,930,153 $ 93,051,128 § 79,643,355

The following presents the non-employer OPEB liability associated with the District as of June 30,
2019 calculated as disclosed above as well as what the total non-employer OPEB liability would be
if it was calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or I-
percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rate:

Healthcare
At 1% Cost Trend
decrease Rates At 1% increase
Total OPEB Liability (Allocable to
the District and the responsibility
of the State) $ 76,669,982  § 93,051,128 § 114,736,402
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OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferrved Inflows of Resources Relaied to
OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized on-behalf OPEB expense and revenue in
the government-wide financial statements of $3,130,744 for OPEB expenses incutred by the State.

Collective balances of the Education Group at June 30, 2019 are as follows:
Deferred outflows of resources  §  1,921,145,183
Deferred inflows of resources $ 20,887,639,826
Collective OPER expense $ 1,015,664,875
District’s Proportion 0.22%
Special Funding Situation
The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by
the State, therefore, the District records an expense and corresponding revenue for its respective

share of total OPEB expense and revenue attributable to the State of New Jersey,

11. Interfund Receivables and Payables

The total interfund accounts receivable and payable for the District at June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Interfund Interfund

Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $ 10,412 $ 5411
Capital Projects Fund 5411 24,753
Debt Service Fund 24,753
Payroll Agency Fund 10,412

$ 40,576 $ 40,576

The interfund between the payroll agency fund and the general fund represents payroll withholdings that
are held in the payroll agency fund and due to the general fund at June 30, 2020. The interfund payable
from the capital projects fund to the debt service fund represents interest earned on bond proceeds due to
the debt service fund to pay off related debt service where the cash was not moved as of June 30, 2020.
The interfund payable from general fund to the capital projects fund represents expenditures paid out of
the capital projects fund that were actually general fund expenditures. All interfund balances are
expected to be repaid within one year,
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12. Transfers

The following presents a reconciliation of transfers during the 2020 fiscal year:

Transfers Transfers
In Out

Capital Projects Fund $20,316
Debt Service Fund $ 20,316
$20,316 $20,316

The transfer out of the capital projects fund to the debt service fund was to transfer interest earned
on bond proceeds as required by statute.

13. Economic Dependency

The District receives its support from federal and state governments. A significant reduction in the level
of support, if this were to occur, would have an effect on the District’s programs and activities.

14. Contingent Liabilities

The District participates in numerous state and federal grant programs, which are governed by vatious
rules and regulations of the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the District has not complied
with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and
the collectibility of any related receivable at June 30, 2020 may be impaired.

In the opinion of the District, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with
the rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provisions have been recorded in
the accompanying basic financial statements for such contingencies.

The District is involved in several other claims and lawsuits incidental to its operations, In the opinion
of the administration and legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial position of the Districl.

15, Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage or destruction of assets;
errors or omissions; employee health and accident claims; and natural disasters.

Property, Liability and Health Benefits

The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property, liability, health, student
accident and surety bonds and does not retain risk of loss. A complete schedule of insurance
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15. Risk Management (continued)

coverage can be found in the statistical section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and no settlements
have exceeded insurance coverages over the past three years.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the
“Benefit Reimbursement Method,” Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey
Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged (o its account with the
State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State.

16. Deferred Compensation Plans

The Board offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed
below, permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years., Amounts deferred under
the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
emergency.

The plan administrators are as follows:

AIG Valic The Vanguard Group

AXA Equitable Matrix Financial Group, Inc.
Citistreet Metro TSA Metropolitan Life Insurance Co.
FRJ Fund Choice Prudential Annuities

17. Restricted Assets

The funds set aside for capital reserve and emergency reserve in the general fund are classified as
restricted assels (cash and cash equivalents) as they are restricted for use for future capital requirements
and unforeseen emergencies. The funds set aside for capital projects in the capital projects fund are
classified as restricted assets (cash and cash equivalents) as they are restricted for use for the District’s
2017 School Building Improvements and Renovation projects.

18. Commitments

The District has contractual commitments at June 30, 2020 to various vendors, which are recorded
in the general fund as fund balance assigned to other purposes in the amount of $199,990.
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19, Tax Abatements

As defined by the GASB, a tax abatement is an agreement between a government and an individual
" or entity in which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity
promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic development or
otherwise benefits the government or its citizens, However, the county or municipality in which the
school district is situated may have entered into tax abatement agreements, and that potential must
be disclosed in these financial statements. If the county or municipality entered into tax abatement
agreements, those agreements will not directly affect the school district’s local tax revenue because
NJ.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A. 54:4-76 require that amounts so forgiven must effectively be
recouped from other taxpayers and remitted to the school district,

For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has elected to raise
their minimum tax levy using the required local share provision at N.J.S. A, 18 A:7F-5(b), the loss of
revenue resulting from the municipality or county having entered into a tax abatement agreement is
indeterminate due to the complex nature of the calculation of required local share performed by the
New Jersey Department of Education based upon district property value and wealth,

Chatham Township and the Borough of Chatham have not entered into any long-term tax
exemptions as of June 30, 2020, therefore there are no tax abatements effecting the District as of
June 30, 2020.

20, Liquidity, Management Plans and Intentions

Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, the District closed its schools on March 16, 2020 and continued to
provide online instruction to its students through the end of the school year. The Pandemic did not
have a significant impact on the financial statements of the District for the year ended June 30,
2020, However, the Pandemic did result in the State of New Jersey taking steps to reduce the
amount of state aid to be provided to the District in the 2020-21 fiscal year subsequent to the
District’s adoption of its budget. Management has taken steps to reduce certain expenses related to
operating the District and also plans to utilize existing funds to balance its budget for the 2020-21
fiscal year, if needed. Management believes that the unassigned fund balance available as of June
30, 2020 and the anticipated revenues from state aid, taxes and other revenues will be sufficient to
meet the District’s financial needs for one year from the date of the issuance of this report.
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School District of the Chathams

Schedule of the State's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability
and Changes in the Total OPEB Liabilily and Related Ratios

Public Employees' Retirement System and Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund
Required Supplementary Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years*

State's proportion of the net OPER
Hability (asset) associated with the Distriet -
Local Group

District's proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability (asset)

Siate's proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability {asset) associated
with the District

Total propottionate share of the net OPEB liability {asset)
associated with the District

Plan fiduciary net position as a
pereentage of the total OPEB liabitity

Teotal OPER Liability

Service cost
Interest cost
Differences between expecled and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Member contributions
Gross benefits payments
Net change in OPEB liability

Total OPERB liability - beginning
Total GPEB liability - ending

Covered-employee payroll

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

This schedule is presented to itlustrate the requirement to show information for ten years, However, until a full ten-year

Year Ended June 30,
2020 2019 2048 2017
0.22% 0.22% 0.21% 021%
-3 - ¥
93,051,528 $ 99,785,017 114,424,478 $123,473414
93,051,128 % 99,785,017 114,424,478 $ 123473414
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
2020 2019 2018 2017%*
4,116,979 § 4,638,708 5,603,912
3,967,884 4,216,757 3,642,583
(13,434,430) (9,468,097)
1,387,399 (11,450,831} (15,742,708}
84,671 92,218 97,591
(2,856,392) (2,668,216} {2,650,315)
(6,733,889) (14,639,461} {9,048,937)
96,785,017 114,424 476 123,473,414
93,051,128  § 99,785,017 114,424,477
37,027,432 $ 35,749,432 35,065,841
251.30% 279.12% 32631%

trend is compiled, governments should present informatian for those years for which information is available.

information net available
Notes to Required Supplementary information
Benefit Changes

‘There were note.

Changes of Asswinptions

The discount rate changed from 3.87% as of June 30, 2618 to 3.50% as of June 30, 2019,
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Exhibit C-1

Pape 1 of 7
BOARD QOF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Budgetary Comparksen Schedule
(Budgetary Basis)
General Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2020
Variance
Original Budget Final Finnl to
Budpet Transfers Budgel Actunl Actual
REVENUES:
Local Sources:

Local Tax Levy $ 65,360,364 $ 65360364 § 65,360,364

Tuition 371,400 371,400 354,283 & {17,147}

Transporietion Fees 166,600 160,000 99,496 {60,504}

Inferest Eamed on Investmsnis 1¢ i 144,577 144,567

Miscellaneous 340,000 340,006 579,693 239,693
Total - Local Sonrces 66,231,774 66,231,7M 66,538,383 306,609
State Sources:

Categorical Special Education Aid 2,116,013 2,116,013 2,116,013

Transportation Aid 723,961 723,961 723,96%

Security Aid 159,916 159,216 159,916

Additionai Non-Public Transportation Aid 22,436 22,436

Extraordinary Aid 350,060 350,000 384,195 34,195

TPAT Pension Contribution (On-Behalf - Non-Dudgeted) 6,451,322 6,411,322

TPAFT Post-Retirement Medical (On-Behalf - Non-Budgeted) 2,378,483 2,378,483

TPAF Long-Term Disability Insurance (Gn-Bellf - Non-Budpeted) 6,298 6,298

TPAT Social Security (Reimbursed - Non-Budgeted) - - 2,314,587 2,314,587
Taotal State Sources 3,349,890 3,349,800 §4,517,211 11,167,221
Federal Sources:

Medical Assistance Program 18,208 18,208 - {18,208)
Total - Federni Sources 18,208 18,208 - (18,208)
Totai Revenues 69,599,872 69,599,872 RE,055,594 11,455,722

EXPENDITURES:
Currend Expense:
Regular Programs - Insteuction
Kindergarten - Salgries of Teachers 527,342 S (138,097} 189,245 389,245
Grades -5 - Salaries of Teachers 7,286,307 158,009 7,444,316 7,319,696 124,620
Grades 6-8 - Salaries of Teachers 5,214,868 (76,585) 3,138283 5,135,566 2,717
Grades 9-12 - Salaries of Teachers 1,571,261 269,693 7,846,954 7,697,364 149,590
Repular Programs - Home Instruction
Salaries of Teachers 51,000 {17,5006) 33,500 32,040 1,460
Purchased Professional-Educatonal Services 30,000 43,916 73,916 62,872 11,044
Giler Purchased Services 500 560 500
General Supplies 500 560 500
Regular Programs - Undistributed Tnstruction
Other Salaries for Instruction 259,492 1,723y 257,769 248,031 5,738
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 10,75¢ 10,750 ) 3,666 1084
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 38,070 (3,620} 34,450 15,032 18,818
Rentals 331,680 12,196 343,876 232,472 111,404
Other Purchased Services 32,166 (1,285} 30,881 29,162 1,718
Travel 1,600 1,500 148 1,452
General Supplies 1,569,948 {287,743) 1,282,205 1,164,475 189,73¢
Textbooks 11,512 {1,800} 75,712 51,569 24,143
Other Objects 43,213 {5,920 37,293 20,874 6419
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS - INSTRUCTEION 23,052,209 (59,459) 23,001,130 22,402,812 598,938
SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION
Learning andfer Language Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers 5,664 5,664 5,664
Osher Sataries for Instrixction 65,324 1,530 67,254 67,254
General Supplies 4,500 {1,449} 3,051 3,051
Tatal Learning aml/or Eanguage Disabilities 69,824 6,143 75,969 75,069
Visual Impalrments
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 4,300 4,300 1,900 2,400
Total Yisual Impairments 4,300 4,300 1,960 2,400
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Behavlorak Disabililles
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salares for Instrzetion
Tatal Behavloral Blsabilities

Multiple Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instouction
General Supplies

Total Multipte Disabill{ies

Resource Room/Resource Cenler
Saluries of Teachers
Other Salarics for instruction
General Supplies
Texibooks
‘Folal Resoutrce Roony/Resource Center

Preschool Blsabllitics - Part-Time
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplics

Total Preschool Disabiities - Pare-Time

Preschool Disabilities - Full-Time
Salaries of Teachers
Otiser Salaries for Instraction
General Supplies

Tolal Preschool Disabillties - Full-Time

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION

Basle Skills/Remedlal - Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
General Supplies

‘Total Basic Skills/Remedial « Instruction

Bilingual Edueation - Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Total Bilingual Education - Instruction

School-Spen, Cocurriculnr Actvis, - Inss.
Salaries
Purchased Services
Suppiies and Materials
Giher Objects
Total School-Spon, Cocurricular Actvts, - Inst,

School-Spon. Athletics
Salasies
Purchased Services
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services
Insurance
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects
Tatal Sehool-Spon. Athtelies

Taotal Instruction

Exhibit C-1

Page 2 of 7
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Budgetary Comparlson Schedule
(Budgetary Dasis)
General Fund
Yenr Ended June 30, 2020
Variance
Original Budget Final Finad Lo
Dhiduet Transfers Budoet Actual Actual
% 69,149 § 1,566 % 70,715 70,715
14,538 79% 15,317 15,337
83,687 2,365 86,052 86,052
364,230 15,369 379,599 379,599
250,759 {11,725) 239,034 234,286 4,748
3,493 (293) 3,200 3,200 -
618,482 3,351 621,833 617,085 4,748
3,604,407 33,07 3,637,524 3,637,524
214,31 47,598 961,909 938,079 23,830
9,268 439 9,707 9,645 62
1,500 (1,300) 200 0 -
4,529,486 79,854 4,609,340 4,585,448 21,892
190,061 (84,700} 105,361 105,361
96,055 29,361 125,416 124,770 646
2,200 (199 2,000 2,00] .
288,310 {55,518) 232,778 232,132 646
222,944 91,195 314,139 314,139
13,065 22,706 35771 12,520 23,251
£,200 (15) 1,185 1,185 -
237,209 113,386 351,095 327,844 23,251
5,831,304 150,063 5,981,267 5,926,430 54,937
770,682 129,214 899,894 8G5,043 94,853
7475 (2,952) 4,523 4,523 -
778,157 126,262 904,419 809,566 94,853
218,666 27,121 245,187 245,787
218,660 27121 245,787 245,787
319440 106,79% 486,239 486,239
1,000 1,000 45 255
69,083 1,800 70,880 34,810 36,070
25,150 (822) 24,928 22,428 2,500
475,270 107,777 583,047 544,222 38,825
525,300 (36,394 488,906 484,531 4,375
130,336 (56,929) 73,401 69,483 3,918
11,500 5,131 16,631 16,631
77,914 (3,663) 74,251 74,251
60,765 9,539 70,264 59,582 10,722
119,994 (35,463} 83,531 77,134 6,397
925,303 {118,779 §07,024 781,612 25,412
31,281,400 241,985 31,523,394 30,710,429 £12,965
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL PISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
(Budgetary Basis)
General Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2028

Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction
Tuition 1o Other LEAs Within the State - Special
Tuition to County Voe. Schoel Dist, - Regular
Tuition 1o Private Schools for the Disabled - Within State
Tuition to Priv. Sch. Disabled & Other LEAs-Spl, O/
Total Undisertbuted Expenditures - Instruction

Undistributed Expend, - Atlend, and Social Work
Salnries

Tetal Undistributed Expend. - Attemd. and Soclal Work

Undist, Expend. - Health Services
Saiaries
Salaries of Social Services Coordinator
Purchased Professional and Technical Seevices
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Health Services

Bidist, Expend, - Other Supp. Sery. Students - Speech, OT, FT aml Related
Services

Salaries

Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Supplics and Materials
Tatal Undlst, Expend, - Other Supp, Serv, Students - Speech, OT, FT and
Related Services

Undist, Expend, ~ Other Supp. Serv. Students - Extra Serv,
Salades
Other Salaries for Insteuction
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Supptlies and Materials
Total Undist, Expend, - Other Supp, Serv. Students - Extra Serv,

Undlst, Expend, - Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretariat and Clerical Assistants
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Other Purchased Prof. and Teels, Services
Supyplies and Materials
Other Oljects

Totat Undist. Expead. - Guidance

Undist. Expend, - Child Study Teams
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Purchased Prof. - Educational Services
Other Purchased Prof, and Tech, Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplics and Materials
Othier Objects

Tatal Undlst, Expend, ~ Child Study Teams

Undist, Expend, - Improvement of Enst, Sery,
Salaties of Supervisors of Instruction
Supplics and Materials
Ciher Objects

Totaj Undist, Expend, - Improventent of [ust. Seev,

Exhibit C-1

Pape 3 of 7
Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
g 54,076 § (16,500) % 37,616 $ 37,676
22,000 41,000 63,000 § 59,408 3,592
2,292,263 (258,000} 2,024,263 1,999,029 25,234
240,000 240,000 157,721 82219
2,608,439 {243,500} 2,364,939 2,216,158 143,781
63,042 1,005 64,137 64,137
63,042 1,008 64,137 64,137 -
646,435 (27,987) 618,448 370,723 41,723
871 871 87
24,300 1,240 25,540 23,210 2,330
970 (45) 025 623 02
19,178 {4,104) 15,074 13,247 1,827
690,883 (30,025) 560,858 608,676 52,182
770,561 1241 771,802 771,802
89,400 6,926 96,326 96,126
5,825 (824.00) 5,000 4,482 519
863,786 T3 473,129 872,640 519
204,526 {34,556) 166,970 112,650 54,320
531,399 12,£70 543,560 531412 6,157
247,902 (18,924) 228,978 196,650 38,328
35,700 (8,106) 27,594 26,086 1,508
1,016,527 (49,416) 967,111 B66,798 100,313
1,306,882 29,787 1,336,669 1,336,669
142,200 2,100 144,300 144,300
22,600 22,606 22,080 520
12,600 (26) 2,574 11,824 750
£1,470 {4,000) 7,470 5,854 i,616
11,560 (663) 10,897 10,835 62
1,507.312 27,198 1,534,510 1,531,562 2,948
1,645,539 27,000 1,642,539 1,642,539
167,565 4,135 171,700 171,700
10,000 {1,030) 8,950 8,400 550
20,400 (13,506) 6,894 6,804
7,500 (7,079 421 421
30,353 {756} 29,597 29,597
3,140 {1,061.00) 2,079 2,099 -
1,854,457 7.683 1,862,180 1,861,630 350
845,144 {64,605} 780,535 780,535
500 {5) 495 495
500 {86) 414 414
846,144 {64,700} 781,444 81,444
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Undlst, Expend. - Edu. Medin Serv./Sch, Library
Salaries
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Othier Objects
Total Undist. Expend, - Edu, Media Serv./Sch, Library

Undist, Expend, - Instructional Staff Training Serv.
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects
Total Undist, Expend, - Instruclicnal Staff Tralning Serv,

Undist, Expend, - Supp. Serv. - General Admlo,
Salarics
Legal Services
Audit Fees
Architectural/Enginecring Services
Other Purchased Professional Services
Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Insurance
Communicalions/Telephone
Travel
Board of Education Other Purchased Services
Miscellancous Purchased Services
General Supplies
Board of Education In-feuse Training/Meeting Supplies
Miscellancous Expenditures
Board of Education Dues and Fees
Totnk Undist, Expend, - Supp. Serv., - General Admln,

Undist, Expend. - Support Sery, - School Admin,
Salnries of Principals/Assistant Principals
Salnries of Seeretarial and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Services
Travel
Supplics and Materials
Gther Objects
Totai Undlst. Expend, - Support Serv, - School Admin,

Undist, Expend, - Central Services
Salaries
Purchased Professional Services
Purchased Technical Services
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services
Rentals
Travel
Miscellaneous Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Miscellaneous Expenditures

‘Total Undist. Expend. - Centrak Services

Undlist, Expend, - Technology Admin,
Salaries
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services
Travel
Supplies and Materiats
Other Objects

‘Fotal Undist.Expend. - Technology Admiln,

Exhibit C-§
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Budgeiary Comparisen Scl:edule
(Budgetary Basis)
General Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2020
Variance
Original Budget Final Finnl te
DBudget Transfers Budyet Actual Aetual
5 746,334 §  (55257) § 691,077 682,083 8 8,994
71,640 {19,064) 52,576 51,650 926
74,328 (1,279 73,049 69,753 3,296
31,345 {11,200) 20,145 19,575 570
923,647 {86,800} 836,847 823,061 13,786
648,284 9,797 558,081 658,08{
21,650 4,371 26,021 26,021
62,383 (36,053) 26,332 26,332
13,000 (6,065) 6,935 6,705 230
26,375 {5,107) 20,268 20,268 -
771,694 (34,057) 737,637 737,407 230
555,929 4,216 560,145 558,470 1,675
235,000 (24,21%) 210,781 198,000 12,781
69,490 69,490 69,490
5,000 22,559 27,959 27,959
28,540 28,540 5,161 23,319
3,500 3,500 3,500
2,326 1260 3,586 2,285 13Tt
70,041 (6,307) 63,734 32,172 31,562
12,120 (3,0000 9,120 3,613 5,507
5,000 214 5,214 3,160 2,054
5,000 5,000 807 4,193
13,895 (8,500) 5,305 23,023 3,372
12,200 (9,500) 2,700 2,700
23,852 28,852 17,000 13,762
46,000 " 16,000 44,150 1,850
1,092,893 (22,877) 1,070,016 267,010 103,006
2,017,499 37,494 2,054,993 2,012,038 42,955
770,841 14,692 785,533 783,120 2413
24,690 {6,237y 18,453 5978 12475
4,240 {905} 3,335 739 2,596
16,106 (7,827} 8,279 5,735 2,544
19,593 (4,430} 15,163 §2,293 2,370
2,852,969 32,787 2,885,756 2,819,903 65,853
802,340 895 803,235 803,235
50,250 (11,006} 39,250 33,296 5,954
§5,000 (2,45%) 12,543 6,492 6,049
300 360 300
4,732 (10,391) 4,341 4,341
5,000 5,000 2,498 2,502
34,450 5,328 39,778 39,780 68
27,032 275) 26,761 13,919 12,842
6,860 4,442 11,362 11,2%¢ 12
555,964 (13,456) 942,508 914,781 272,727
596,619 28,954 625,573 625,573
83,060 (32,093) 52,967 50,262 2,705
5,400 (1.721) 3,679 2,004 1,675
92,320 (3,749} 88,571 70,683 7,888
600 (25) 575 575 -
779,999 (3,034) 771,365 749,097 22,268
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Undist. Expend, - Reguired Maint, for Sch, Facll.
Salaries

Exhibit C-1

Page 5 of 7
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Budgeiary Comparison Schedule
(Budgetary Basis)
General Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2020
Variance
Original Budlzet Finnk Fiual (e
Budpet Transfers Budpet Actual Actugl

§ 597,626 § 7,001 8 605,527 8 591,235 % 8,292

Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 313,801 223,692 537,493 495,987 41,506
Travel 6,500 (6,000) 500 395 105
General Supplies 214,700 {13,859) 200,841 183,948 16,893
Other Oljects 2800 - 2,000 1,411 53¢
Total Undist, Expend. - Required Maint, for Sch, Facil, 1,134,627 211,734 1,346,361 1,278,976 67,385
Undist, Expend., - Custodinl Services
Salaries 1,920,262 (15,449} 1,904,883 1,898,329 6,484
Snlaries of Non-lustructicnal Aides 48,553 (7,842) 40,751 38,6711 2,640
Cieaning, Repair and Maintenance Senvices 289,850 82,950 372,800 329,746 43,0654
Other Purchased Property Services £13,i05 11,818 124,923 114,318 10,605
Insurance 369,985 {3,182) 306,303 306,708 95
General Supplies 271,775 {16,350) 255,425 242,244 13,184
Gasoline 27,270 {9,308) 17,962 14,434 1,528
Nataral Gas 338,481 338,481 118,222 20,259
Electricity 559,377 559,377 356,514 202,861
Interest on Energy Seavings Improvement Program Bonds 96,813 96,813 96,813
Principal on Energy Savings Improvement Propram Bonds 287,449 287,449 287,449
Other Objects 5,000 - 5,080 4,542 458
Total Undist, Expend, - Custodial Services 4,267,920 42,637 4,310,557 4,007,999 362,567
Hndist, Expend, - Care and Upheep of Grounds
Snlaries 109,131 2,449 112,180 112,180
Cleaning, Repair and Mainienance Services 74,950 3,960 78,910 75,109 3,801
Genere! Sapplies 33,000 543 38,543 34,967 3,576
Total Undist. Expensl. - Care and Upkeep of Grounds 222,681 6,952 229,633 222,256 1377
Undist. Expend. - Securlly
Salaries 256,759 (43,265) 213,494 209,535 3,959
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 123,000 17,000 149,000 110,824 29,176
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 82,800 (32,756) 50,044 45,364 4,680
General Supplies 136,750 (115,027) 21,723 16,383 5,340
Toial Undist. Expend. - Security 599,309 (174,048) 425,261 382,106 43,155
Undist, Expend, - Student Transportation Serv.
Salazies for Pupil Trans. (Between Home & School} - Regular 24,480 60 24,54¢ 24,540
Management Fees - ESC & CTSA Transportation Programs 12,960 2,960 12,820 140
Other Purchased Professional and Techmical Services 6,000 6,000 5,807 193
Contracled Services Aid In Lieu of Payment for Nou-public School Students 185,075 {5,275) 179,800 121,744 58,056
Contracted Services (Between Home and School) - Vendors 792,000 {41,945) 750,055 737,299 12,756
Contracted Services (Other than Betweens Home and School) - Vendors 448,597 (13,332) 395,265 283,322 111,943
Caniracted Services (Regular Students) - ESCs 144,944 166,409 311,353 311,353
Confracted Services (Special Education Students) - ESCs 1,342,116 174,971 1,517,087 1,209,439 307,648
Misceilaneous Purchased Services - Transportation 6,000.00 {6,000} - - -
Totat Undist, Expend, - Student Transportation Serv. 2,922,172 274,888 3,197,060 2,706,324 490,736
Unallocated Benefits
Social Sceurity Contributions 250,000 13,403 823,403 223,403
Other Retirement Contributions « Repular 861,000 (81,497 779,503 779,238 265
Workmen's Compensation 291,451 {3,684} 287,767 287,767
Heaith Benefits 9,774,382 (47,0823 9,627,300 8,761,225 266,075
Tuition Reimbursemens 165,000 14,455 179,455 179,446 9
Other Employee Benefits 190,000 {86,665} 103,335 96,621 6,714
Tota} Unallocated Benefits 12,091,833 (291,076} 11,800,763 10,927,700 873,063
TPAF Pension Contribution (On-Behalf - Non-Budpeted) 4,411,322 (6,411,322)
TPAF Post-Retirement Medical (Ca-Behalf - Nou-Budgeted) 2,378,483 (2,378,483)
TPAF Long-Term Disability Insurance {On-Behalf - Non-Budgeled) 6,298 (6,298)
Reimbursed TPAF Socint Security Contributions {non-budgeted} 2,314,587 (2,314,587)
Totai On-kehalf Contributions 11,110,690 {11,110,690)
TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 33,068,338 (406,266) 37,662,072 46,450,318 (8,788,244)
TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE 69,349,747 (164,284) 69,185,466 77,160,745 (7,975,279)
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CAPITAL OUTLAY

Equipntent

Undistributed Expenditures:
[nstruction

Totnl Equipment

Central Services
Centsal Services Equipment
TFotal Centrat Services

Required Maiptenance for School Frellities
Non-fustructional equipnent
Total Required Maktenance for School Facilities

Custedial Services
Non-Instructional equipment
Totat Custodial Services

Security
Security Equipment
Tatal Security

Facllities Acquisition and Construction Services
Architectural/Engincering Services
Construction Services
Qlber Objects - Debt Service Assessmenn
Other Obieets

Total Facilities Acquisition and Constraction Services

TOTAL CAPITAL QUTLAY

SPECIAL SCHOOLS

Summer Schoeal - Instruction
Sajasies of Teachers
General Supplies

Totat Suntmier School - Instruction
Total Summer Schook

Instructional Alternative Educatien Programs « Insiruction
Salaries of Teachers
General Supplies
Total Instructonat Alternstive Education Programs - Insiruction
TOTAL SPECIAL SCHOOQLS
Contributton to Charter Schocls

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(Beficiency) Excess of Revenues
(Under} Over Expendilures

Fund Bnlance, July 1

Exhibit Ca1

Page 6 of 7
ROARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF TIIE CHATHAMS
Budgeiary Comparison Schedule
(Budgetary Basis)
Genernl Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2020
Yariance
Original Budget Final Finalto
Budget Transfers Budgel Actual Actual
5 224,600 S 101808 § 323408 $ 291,773 § 31,635
221,600 10],808 323,408 291,773 31,635
74,848 74,848 65,066 9,782
74,848 74,848 65,066 9,782
33,851 33,851 33,851
33,331 33,851 33,851
514,018 514,018 512,101 1,917
514,018 514,018 512,161 1,917
26,500 (3,743 22,157 18,107 4,650
26,500 (3,743) 22,757 18,107 4,654
66,000 34,074 100,074 64,784 15,200
476,000 {4,521) R71L479 582,951 238,528
112,459 112,459 112,459 -
10 - 1] - 10
1,054,469 29,553 1,084,022 760,194 323,828
1,302,569 750,335 2,052,904 1,681,092 371,812
18,360 18,360 15,059 3,301
1,260 26 {226 16 1,210
19,560 26 19,586 15,075 4,311
19,569 26 19,586 15,675 4,511
173,400 173,460 171,516 1,884
1,500 - 1,500 1,376 124
174,908 - 174,900 172,852 2,008
194,460 25 194,486 187,967 6,519
34,295 (34,295) . . R
70,885,071 551,785 71,432,856 79,029,804 (7,590,948}
(1,284,199 (551,785) {1,832,984) 2,025,790 3,838,774
5,130,524 - 5,130,524 5,130,524 -
$ 1,849325 § (550,785) § 3297840 § 7156314 § 3.RIRIM

Fund Balance, June 30
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Exhibit C-1

Page 7of 7
ROARD OF ETHICATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATIIAMS
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
{Budgetary Basls)
General Fund
Year Ended Junc 30, 2020
Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Agtual
Recapitulation of {Defliciency) Excess of Revenues and
{(Under} Over Expenditures:
Adjnstment for Prior Year Encumbrances § {551,785) § {551,785} % (551,783}
Budgeted Fund Belasce § (281,199 {281,199} 1,327,575 S 1,608,774
Increase in Emerpency Reserve 250,000 250,600
Increase in Capital Reserve 2,000,600 2,000,600
Withdrawal from Capital Reserve (1,000,000) - (1,600,008) {§,000,000) -
Total $ {(1,281,199) § (555,783} § (183298 § 2025790 § 3,858,774
Recapitulation of Fund Balance:
Restricted Fund Balance:
Excess Surplus Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures s 275424
Excess Surplus-gurment year 1,475,887
Capitat Reserve 3,540,000
Emergency Reserve 230,000
Assigned 10!
Year End Encumbrances 199,990
Unassigned Fund Balance 1,415,043
Budgeary Fund Balance §  7,1563:4
Recouncllintion of Budgetary Fund Balance to GAAP Fund Balanee:
Fund Balance § 7,156,314
Last State Afd Payinents Not Recognized on GAAP Basis (287,983)
Furd balance per Govenumental Funds (GAAP) 3 ..6808331
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
(Budgetary Dasis)

Speeial Revenue Fuand
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Exhibit C-2

Original Budget Final Variance
Budget Translers Budget Actual Final to_ Actual
REVENUES:
State Sources $ 175875 % 10,945 % 186,820 176,966  § (9,854)
Federal Sources © 744,150 {72,723 916,913 812,547 (104,366)
Local Sources 430,758 430,758 198,576 {232,182)
Total Revenues $ 920,065 § 614426 % 1,534,491 1,188,089 § (346,402)
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction
Salaries of Teachers $ 33,426 3 (5,764) § 27,662 § 27,662
Other Salaries 6,475 6,475 3675 § 2,800
Purchased Professional and Educational Services 141,080 (25,670 115,390 98,431 16,959
Other Purchased Services 697,834 24,595 722,429 722,429
Travel 3,500 3,500 525 2,975
Supplies and Materials 5,608 (5,608)
General Supplies 24,836 245,696 270,532 171,087 99,4435
Textbooks 17,301 40 17,341 17,341 -
Total Instruction 920,065 243,264 1,163,329 1,041,150 122,179
Support Services
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 9,682 9,682 9,682
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 89,345 89,345 39,651 49,694
Cleaning, Repairs and Maintenance Services 1,138 1,138 1,138
Purchased Professional and Educational Services 2,006 2,000 2,000
Other Purchased Services 10,244 10,244 8,950 1,294
Supplies and Materials 18,000 18,000 18,000
General Supplies 27,978 27,978 3,574 22,404
Total Support Services 158,387 158,387 65,857 92,530
Facilitics Aequisition and Construction Services:
Instructional Equipment 86,275 86,275 86,275
Equipment 126,500 126,500 81,082 45,418
Total Facilitics Acquisition and Construction Services - 212,775 212,775 81082 131,693
Total Expenditures 920,065 614,426 1,534,491 1,188,689 346,402
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Note io Required Supplementary Information

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and
GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Exhibit C-3

Special
General Revenue
Fund Fund
Sources/inflows of resources
Actuzal amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue”
from the budgetary comparison schedule (C-1, C-2) $ 81,055,594 £ 1,188,089
Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related
revenue is recognized,
Current Year (15,045)
Prior Year, net 84,169
State aid payments from prior year recognized in prior year for
budgetary purposes, and recognized for GAAP statements in
the current fiscal year. 256,885
State aid payments recognized in current year for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements. (287,983) -
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds (B-2). $ 81,024,496 $ 1,257,213
Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the
budgetary comparison schedule {C-1, C-2) $ 79,029,804 $ 1,188,089
Differences - budget o GAAP
Encumbrances (net) for supplies and services ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received
for financial reporting purposes, - 69,124
Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds (B-2) $ 79,029,804 $ 1,257,213
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Exhibit E-1
Pl
(Continued)
BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Special Revenue Fund
Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis
Year Ended June 30, 2020

State Federal Local
Total Aid Aid Ald
REVENUES:

State Sources. $ 176,966 § 176,966

Federal Sources 812,547 $ 812,547

Local Sources 198,576 - - $ 198,576

Total Revenues $ 1,188,089 § 176,966 § 812,547 § 198,576
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:

Salaries of Teachers § 27,662 8 27,662

Purchased Professional and Educational Services 102,106 & 98,431 $ 3,675

Other Purchased Services 722,429 722,429

Travel 525 525

General Supplies 171,087 61,194 13,123 96,770

Texibooks 17,341 17,341

1,041,150 {76,960 763,214 100,970
Total Instraction
Support Services:

Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 9,682 9,682

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 39,651 39,651

Purchased Professional and Educational Services 2,000 2,000

Other Purchased Services 8,950 8,950

General Supplies 5,574 - 5,574
Total Support Services 65,857 49,333 16,524
Facilities Acquisition and Const, Serv.:

Construction Services 81,082 81,082
‘Fotal Facilities Acquisition and Canst. Serv, 81,082 81,082
Total Expenditures 5 1,188,089 § 176,966 § 812,547 § 108,576
Excess (Deficiency) of Revennes Over (Under) h - $ - § - $ -

Expenditures
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REVENUES:
State Sources
Total State Revennes

EXPENDITURES:

Instruction:
Purchased Professional and Educational Services
General Supplies
Textbooks

Total Instruction
‘Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

BOARD OF EDUCATION

Special Revenue Fund
Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Bodgetary Basis
Year Ended June 30, 2020

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS

Exhilt E-1
M2
(Continuesl)

N.d. NJ. N.J. NJ, N.J. NJ.
Noupublic  Nonpublic Nonpuhbkie Nonpublic Nenpublic  NonpubHe
Textbook Auxtliary Handicapped Technology Nursing Sccurity
‘otnd Ald Serviees Serviees Initiative Services Aid
176966 3 17,341 3% 7,301 % 59,217 § (1,844 3 31913 § 49,350
176,966 $ 17,341 § 7,301 § 59,217 § 11,844 § 31913 49,350
98,431 $ 7,301 8 59,217 $ 31913
61,194 $ 1,844 49,350
17,341 8 17,341 - -
176,966 17,341 7301 59,217 11,844 31,913 49,350
176,566 17,341 7,301 59,217 11,844 31,913 49,350
- $ - $ “ $ - $ - § - $ -
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Exhibit E-1

p.3
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Special Revenue Fund
Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis
Year Ended June 30, 2020
E.S.E.A. L.D.E.A,
Title 111
Total Title I1-A Immigrant Basic Preschool
REVENUES;
Federal Sources $ 812,547 % 39,100 3 17 $ 760,324 13,106
‘Total Federal Revenues $ 812,547 % 39,100 3 17 % 760,324 13,106
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:
Salaries of Teachers $ 27,662 § 27,602
Other Purchased Services 722,429 $ 722,429
General Supplies 13,123 3 17 13,106
Total Instruction 763,214 27,662 17 722,429 13,106
Support Services:
Employee Benefits 9,682 9,682
Purchased Professtonal and Technical Services 39,651 1,756 37,895
Total Support Services 49,333 11,438 37,895
Total Expenditures $ 8§2547 3§ 39,100 % i7 8 760,324 13,166
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures $ - % - $ - $ - -
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND




BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS

Exhibit -1

Summary Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balances and Project Status - Budgetary Basis

Year Ended June 30, 2020

REVENUES
Interest earned
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Architectural / Engineering Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures

{Deficiency) of Revenues (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfer out
Total Other Financing (Uses)

(Deficiency) of Revenues Under Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses)

Fund Balance - July 1
Fund Balance - June 30

s 20316
20,316

38,811
2,434,272
2,473,083

(2,452,767)

(20,316)
(20,316)

(2,473,083)

2,473,083
$ -

—————
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REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Bond proceeds and transfers
Premium on bonds

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
Other Puchased Professional and Technicat Services
Archilecturai / Engincering Services

Construction Services

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION
Project Number

Gran{ Dale

Bond Authorization Date

Bonds Authorized

Bonds Issued

Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cosl
Percentage Completed

Original Target Completion Dale

Revised Target Completion Date

BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Projeet Status - Budgetary Basis
Schoot Bullding Improvements and Renovations

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Exhibit F-1a

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
$ 15,864,000 $ 15,864,000 $ 15,864,000
157,806 157,806 157,806
16,021,806 6,021,866 15,864,000
221,660 221,666 221,666
829971 § 38,81 868,782 868,782
12,497,086 2,434,272 14,931,358 14,931 358
13,548,723 2,473,083 16,021,806 16,021,806
$ 2,473,083 §  (2,473,083) % -
N/A
N/A
/1272017
$ 15,864,600
15,864,000
3 16,021,806
0%
100%
Summer 2018
Spring 2020
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Proiect Title/Issue

BOARD OF ERDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OQF THE CHATHARMS
Capital Projects Fund

Summary Schedule of Preject Expenditures
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Schoot Building Improveiments and Renovations

Bond proceeds - 2017 Referendum
Premiun: on bonds
Telal

GAAF Expenditures

Exlilbit F-2

Revised to Date Unexpended
Approval Budgetary Appropriations
Date Appropriations Prior Yenrs Current Year June 30, 2029
1122017 S (6,021,806 S 13,548,723 ) 2,473,083 5 -
Totals $ 16,021,806 § 13,548,723 & 2473083 0§ -
$ 15,864,000

157,806

§ 16021806
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS




Exhibit H-1
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Trust and Agency Funds
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2020

Trust Apgency
Private -
Purpose
Unemployment Scholarship Total Student Total
Compenssation Fund Trust Activity Payroll Afiency
Asscets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 379,584 $ 43,983 $ 423,567 $ 503,437 $ 164,799 § 668,236
Total asseis 379,584 43,983 423,567 $ 503,437 $ 164,799 § 608,236
Liabilitics
Unemploymen: elaims payable 47,625 47,6235
Payroll deductions and
withholdings payable $ 156,594 $ 156,599
Interfund payable 3 2,207 8,205 10,412
Due to student groups 501,230 501,230
Total liabilities 47,625 - 47,625 $ 503,437 $ 164,799 § 668,230
Net Pasition
Held in trust 331,959 43,983 175,942
Total net position b 331959 % 43,983 § 375942
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Exhibit H-3
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Student Activity Agency Fund
Schedule of Cash Reeeipts and Cash Disbursements
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Balance Cash Cash Balance
Schools July 1, 2019 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2028

Elementary Schoois:

Southern Boulevard $ 117 3 117

Milton Avenue 1,310 8§ 7 1,317

Lafayette Avenue 41,608 2,100 % 638 43,160

Washington Avenue 466 3 469
Middle School:

Activity 49,688 50,641 28,324 72,005
High School:

Activity 343,478 297,024 263,037 377,465

Athletic 2,377 64,503 57,976 8,904

$ 439,044 § 414368 0§ 349975 § 503437
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Payroll Agency Fund

Schedule of Cash Receipts and Cash Disbursements
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Balance
July 1, 2019

Cash
Receipis

Cash

Disbursements

Exhibit H-4

Balance

June 30, 2020

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 137,990 $ 49948 589 $ 49,021,780 $ 164,799
Total Assets $ 137,990 $ 49,948,589 § 49,921,780 $ 164,799
LIABILITIES:

Interfund Payable $ 4,020 $ 8,205 $ 4,020 $ 8,205

Salaries and Wages Payable 26,110,778 26,110,778

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings

Payable 133,970 23,829,606 23,806,982 156,594
Total Liabilities b 137,990 $ 49,948,589 § 49,921,780 3 164,799
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LONG-TERM DEBT




BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS

Long - Term Dcht
Schedule of Serial Bonds Payable

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Annual Maturitics
of Bonds Quistanding
June 30, 2020

Date of Amsount of
Burpose Issue Issue Date

Refunding Bonds - Series 20k4A  11/7/2084  § 16,275,000 7/152020 §
771512028
7/15/2022
71152023
74152024
711512025
7/15/2026
74572027
512028
11512029
711512030

Refunding Bonds - Series 20148 11/7/2014 12,270,000 1/i5/2021
. 1/15/20622

111512023

1152024

H15/2025

1/15/2026

School Bonds - Series 2017 171212017 15,864,000 1/15/2021
11152022
17152023
171572024
141512023
1/15/2026
1/15/2027
111572028
1/§5/2029
1/15/2030
1/15/2031
1/15/2032
1/15/2033
15/2034
1/15{2035
i/15/2036
11152037

Amount

400,000
415,000
440,000
460,000
490,000
513,000
2,260,000
2,360,000
2,470,000
2,580,000
2,695,000

1,080,600
1,135,600
1,185,000
1,255,000
1,315,000
1,385,000

680,000
730,000
750,000
750,000
750,000
50,000
605,000
605,000
605,000
605,000
$10,000
1,195,000
1,200,000
1,200,000
1,200,000
1,200,000
£,200,000

Interest
Rate

4.000%
4.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
4.000%
4.000%
4.000%
4.600%
4.600%

3.000%
5.000%
5.000%
3.000%
5.000%
4.000%

2.000%
2.000%
2.000%
2.000%
2,250%
3.000%
3.000%
3.000%
3.000%
3.000%
3.000%
3.000%
3.000%
3.000%
3.125%
3.250%
3.250%

Exhibit §-1

Retired
Balanee Current Ralanee
July 1, 2019 Year June 3¢, 2020
|
§ 15475000 $ 390,000 $ 15,085,000 {
|
|
8,180,000 1,025,000 7,355,000
15,264,000 629,000 14,635,000
$ 39,119,000 $ 2,044,000 § 37,075,000
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Exhibit I-2
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
f.ong - Term Debt
Schedule of Obligations Under Capital Leases
Year Ended June 36, 2020

Interest
Rate Original Balance Balance
Purpose Payable Issue July 1, 2019 Retired June 30, 2020
School Energy Savings (ESIP) 2.40% $ 5,390,000 $ 4,108,656 $ 287,448 $ 3,821,208

$ 4,108,656 $ 287448 $ 3,821,208
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REVENUES:
Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy
State Sources:
Debt Service Aid Type H
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Repular Debt Service:
Redemption of Principal
Interest on Bonds

Total Regular Dcizl Service

Total Expenditures

{Deficiency) of Revenues (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Soureces:
Transfers in
Total other financing sources

Deficiency (Excess) of revenues and other financing
sources (under) over expenditures

Fund Balange, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

BOARD OF EDUCATION

Debt Service Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2020

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CHATHAMS
Budgetary Comparison Scheduie

Exhibit I-3

Variance
Qriginal Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budgel Actual Actual
$ 3,156,995 $ 3,156,995 § 3,156,995
218,364 215,364 215,364
3,372,359 3,372,359 3,372,359
2,044,000 2,044,000 2,044,000
1,457,855 1,457,855 t,457,855
3,501,855 3,501,855 3,501,855
3,501,855 3,50L,855 3,501,855
{125.496) {129,496} (129,496}
- - 20316 § 20,316
- - 20,316 20,316
(129,496) (129,4986) (109,180) 20,316
178,486 - 178,486 178,486 -
h] 48990 § - $ 48,990 § 69,306 % 20,316
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STATISTICAL SECTION




Statistical Section
Unaudited

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the district's
financial performance and well being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the district's most significant local
revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the district's
current levels of outstanding debt and the district's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the district's financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the district's financial report relates to the services the district provides and the
activities it performs,

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
armual financial reports (CAFR) for the relevant year.




56

-9A0GE "TONISOd BN ¥10Z “0E SUN[ 2Q Ul PAISS(oL 101 5 WMOME ST, "006°§5E"E1$ IO UACHRE SR BT H0RI5ed 1ot Suunmiiag Jo MSmIssl . PRIBGE QOTGM “TEDA [€25Y §107 94 SHLp pACIWI|AAn Sexm 39 g5V
UORISOA 15T 0] SIBSSE 19U ST PILIOEN: AISNOLGI $39LRTRQ JO UOREIIHSSERRS U3 ALY tolym “TBIA [B0ST £10Z 91 Juunp puawma[dun SEM £9 gSYD SSAON]

“SPI1092 WHISIC] PUR |-V PMPOYDS BV mog

TT595Tcc §  170%657C §  GoL0BB0C §  EOFISYOE S  OS090CIE § E866SY0E S SeceLlty § ISVISOTP §  880°048%6C § [LTLETUE § nonisod 19U aprm-iusurmsacd [oL
08°LT6°€1) {TLETFEET) (009°Z6L7¢T) LIFILT L) {L6T838C1) (zogg6e el 95T 0I5 S $3¥589 [H¥E] 05T L (3093p) pIorusarar]
111455 £79'960'C ZE0980°C 10L'981't £€1°8€9°¢ 965'L97°E L18'¢e9e 965°05L°9 6T0'H9CY E1§50L Y poMISIY
FOFECSSE § 69T IV §  CY698STIY §  GLULESOP § VIZOSKOr S BIUBRYSE § SRTHIOOE S LOCISTGE § v0GLOYHE S S6O'PYITE § SIS [EUCED UL IUDSIATL 1aN
SPLN-1UINILIIACLY
906965 T VR AT I A € 1 5 s _lovLty §  99SCl¥ S ST EPE $  Z8CS6L S 867692 $ bS660T 3 uomsod U SAMATE KIA-sSHTISNG TR0
<63 ovl 8G¥LET §L0E9E Or6 9T ILEFPL $L6I0T HGEE £v86 ST gyECE pewLISSmN)
£50°95% §  6l618r  §  LP8E¥T 8§ 10699T S $80°E8T §  885°%0T [ i 14 §  &55°00T §  €LSL8L §  209'FLI $ SISSE [EYCED B WIURSIARY
sonlagoe 3d4-ssomsng
S066Y0 FE & VE9GLBIC §  OLPLLCOS S CEOLIP66Z $  6VYRLL0S S SIVORGOE § “IECGI8Tr S 690C6CEiy §  O6LO096S 5 LITIS0LE § T0TIs0d 19T SINIARSE [RUNALIIAOT (RO
(£$9'850791) (6E7085751) (8297361 %1) LEEBISHI) {Eigzenen) (08TE0S L) $E6'38E°C SYI 068 0EF 9L YIETTY (310gop) porLasanu(y
| §59 44 £TII60°E TI0'960°E 1027981t SEI'SEYE 955LOTE LIgELY'E 965°05L9 6Z0¥9EF C16°S0L'Y poaasay
ISTLLOSY §  O0SY6scrh §  O80LECIr §  SLTELTOF $  GTUELIOFP $ OVITZRTGE §  IBLS0S'SE $ STHOS0TE § ISECOSYYE § 05V6967IE § S19552 [E1CED UT JUSURSIAL 13N,
SOULADDE [CILANURIIACLT)
Guﬁmu.nwdu
0202 610¢ §16% LI0T SI0C $102 ¥10C <10C Z10C 110Z
“pEIwmL JO SY
palprRny
{TUGUNOoDE JO SISEq [ENRDE)
SRR [POSL] UL IST]
susuodaton Aq vonIsed =N
SUEAIRL) 291 JO OSKT [00URS

r



96

(g08's0C'98) §
(1sveel)
{L7€°E80°98) §

(P9 81VL8) §

{152998¢6) §

(C061LL8) S

97901

(¢o1'sT5°L8) §

FROT01

(sv5°896°€6) §

OrTER

{L9T°C08°L8) §

SEOFL

(TSTITLBLY §

LIETVLRL) §

(66T ve) $

(18128759 §

(LI9LILTY §

19L°8%
(099°86L°FL) §

Er6Y
(000°1L859) §

¥80°9T

([oL'shLed s

{0LTOLY6S) §

Fre6s

{#19°62€°6S) §

{€62580715) S
93E'9
(6L5'160'25) $

ZOLCI9C  § r09°866C S WWETETE  $ 0sSFls % GEIQSIE  § 605 YIOE  § CBYERLT  § IYULLLT & PSE9ELC  § oy1I's8T ¢
Q08" +06 CLLULYE Y [l [19°65TL R0 1T [ 9557 Ly1 T 00661 T 6517786 985 1H01 $96 00T
£L671S w18 PIE8S 16788 9THEG L36°€8 Eiat) $5T16 oysEs LLTOL
310°6€
s was 185°99¢1 LTE8YET 082799171 €TILTIT 595°E90°L 1vZ810°1 Y00 168 IS 04§°668
96 01LT [€87059°1 101°968°1 655 6F8 ] 60°626°1 £56998°1 SSLELST L99SvL] 2L P61 181°€28°1
GEECET 0TL 6l 8687891 SPLE5T 985 8¥E £5L°89 186'9L LG6T 68079LT [RZA
PLETOIL 08T L L6671 B1L709T 1 CEI89’L S0OTIFT 1$9°0£T 1 £30°15t°1 9L £0L°96¢°1
IE¥' 66 7N VA 86TTL] Br9°LST 9Tl 095" FEl 91174l TELIL 89186 LELTOT
E5TPEE Y 098TI1 s 8067601 g BTHE91 s SYE6LT 5 TEQISE £ 8E1°8ET 3 EYTPLI s 006°EY g 00509 b3
0.5 17888 S LyTLIV0s § £0T660°LE 8§ LLCEIR06 S [Zr8L818 S BOYPRLLL & 79050989 § Err S § F£990779 % 5P EI6ES S
182 4201 vl LSLET ] [FTRTAN! PIQLOTT S6LBLOT L1050 L0956 YT e8s 619866
6789
[8T°LTH1 1T L5l LLL1LD0L PIOLOTY S6L73L0L LLT090°1 CLO956 FTE8s 08€7°0£6
68C ¥6L. L8 9E6' L1658 S ¥r98°56 208°189°68 LOF1L9°08 €19°$99°9L S8LYPSLY 9E° 63 ¥ BEYILIS 09L F16'8S
BI6E0Y1 el Lyl 8T6°LTET 968795°( 05°981°1 SV LED] EY1PIL’1 TEROLSTT G0ESES'T [XANTTA
LEL'TE $00°0T 1286 £ZTTL
SLOPIS QLIGLT BTF90E S51°81€ FLEO6T 66505T SFTOT ¥SETLL OrT0ST L8§7LT1
LYTTITLT 96 PTI'E LBT3S6'T 9159887T S6L50LT [68°2L8E CSHETOV'T £8E8ELT 9ETLIFT S06'PEF'T
08 rigL 6v6'06°L 9GP PE8L 1L9°655°L L9E'9969 016'8P59 981 PEY'9 STI'6ET9 LIG'696S 015"905°%
GFE 10T 8O ETTE QSO PST Y 0¥0°6867C 0TY985°E S169LY'E 600°1C6T 668°998°T 06E'885°T 681°506°T
SEEE0LY BYE9ERY L386YI'S SOLTYI'S 200°L88°Y 00Oy GPSTTITE TIETLLE LPI0eL’E PIFIPYE
060°€0E°EL YL PORE] PEYPIF L 1042571 SCI688TT1 8947081711 G8L865°6 $¥9°598°8 108 vZCs POEFETL
WSILLES § $9L6L8EE S SLOTIFES § ETYE TS S 98L'65L°6Y § YOLGETLY  § LoV IFT0r 8 BLL6VEBE § SITLEEDE & 9STOS6VE §
{pajersal su)
070 610¢ 810¢ L10Z 9102 $10C yI0T 16T z10Z 1102
“QE JUR[ PAPUD JBOA
PAEPREN()
(Sunnosde o SISeq [RIIoe)
SIE3 7 [BIsid U], 527
uomsog 1aN W saduey)y
SUmE]]) 3T JO WISK] [0oyog
o1

ot

NU2AL{ISUIND] 19U IPLM-TUITALIAGT [F10],
sauLnOE 2dA-ssauIsng

SIMIALTE [RIUSUILIIACS)

anuaay/(Fsuadxy) 1]

sanuaas: wrerfoud apra-usumuacd oy,
somuaass weaFord ssnwise 2dA) ssansng 2103
SUOUGUINOD PUE SIUeLd FuneIadsy
Sqr)) SN0y
VLIS POC]
5901AI9S 10§ $aFrey
‘soqIAnoe sdf-ssowmsng
SINUIARL WIFOId SIBLANSE [EIUSUANIACT [210 ]
suonngLIUed pre SR [EUde)
STORNGLRNCY PUR SIURLE Funerad)
GoneuodsuR 1dng
(nonmy) aononnsay
15901195 107 sefrer))
ISOMIARDE [BIUOEALIBAOL)
SINUIATY LSO

sosuadxa pIm-1asUII3A0T €101
5uadX? SamALDE HKAL-SSIUISIY [RI0]
sqny dno
SVIAIIE POOS
$on1Anse sdAl-ssaursng

SOMLALDR [EIEALUEA0T [F10]
1q3p oy 30o] 0o 51509 IS0 PUR 1S0IS1]
$[00q2 9ueT)
S[o0Y2S [ERdg
S23LAIIS TOQRUICASIED JU2pmS
SIOIAIDS TUE[J JO ISURLSIWIE|N PUE toneid(y
SIALIS UONEASIITIIPE SSIULSTIE PUE [BIUD
5901108 QONRASITIWPE [COYDS
5301A195 PSIE[a] UOLDNAST PUE PG
E0IAIS Uoddng
ORINOsSUY
SOBLAOOE [RIIIUNLISAOL)

sosuadxy



&

“mzaA snowaad 51 WO FHUT] SRS STOLIEA PUE STONNGLIKGCD PUT SIEL POISLRSOIUN S PISEAOUI (MY B34 [298T 10T 20 W pAvameidun sem ¢/ gV

MOS0 19T OF SIASSE 12U §7 papodar A[SNOLA2Id S00UT[Rq JO UONTILISIEIal S paImMbOI gatyMm “TeaA [2259 £10¢ A Fulnp polusiu|dun sem €9 GSVD SN

06L15€C &  999F0L1 S ceRisy 3 L1Z80069) (119vbZ8) TeEgsees) s (Sgvievrs) s  (265987) {ossvi9) 5 (Zveisl S
(18v Cit) oS00 ¥R0°Z01 ¥20°C01 0P <8 SE0FL 192°8% CTreYy PROST rrEES
LTH9T S  0T885T §  B08'SEE s (s06'700°L) {L16°LEE']) (prg6oe's) S (981°16¥8) ¢ {0709} (Flo'ooL) (98Tl S
965/C188 S GOCGCL6S § ESIHOEYE § _OFF 696708 OSE PLV 6L CYWTLESL § vIVLOEGY S 0S6PECSY [30CY0C9 &  SIECSEGS_S
265 LCL°88 80E £CI 68 ECTF0E +6 07’696 98 0SE +Lr 6L CrrTLESL Por LOS 0% 085 VS 59 L80°EH0'T9 STETRE6S
£69°6LE vy 679 8L 1LY 201182 3TILYS 65 Py 96L°99% €6S01 [ YO'LIY POT96T
£6891 18L°0L1 FOELEL 1587t 6857 980' LET'Y LAl 009'6 ¥90'p1
£69°565°61 1L6'E101T 101°290°6Z £EH0EL°ST TI0'ISSLL LIG'SES ] LESTLEL 901°£89°L 1L5°160°9 63LTBLY
$66'951°E STEOILE 666'00L'T 018192 £95°L09°T WTES9T 09LLELT CEI6TLT 955°EELE SI9°6TLT
$9C09E°69 §  SSLBLOYO § 09671T6I9 § SETLYIO9 &5 LOL8S 909TPLLS §  FECRESS § 0 Q0IS00°S 96T I6LZS §  HELGSSIE S
0Z0T (3 S10T L10C 510¢ [§T ¥10T €10T Z10Z 1102
"OE IUN[ PIPUS TeI K
poIpIRU[}
{Sununoase Jo SISBG [Froe)
SIED A [BOSL] WAL IS
uenIse 19N Ut sa3uey)
STBYIRG ) I JO IHUSK] 000G
{pananueo)
zyezdd

«r

“SPICORI IDFASIC] PUE {-V A[NPIYIS WIVD) DIIMOG

LS [BO].

SOTIAROE d41-ssomsng
SOUIARIE [RUSIUIIAGE)
=ONISe 32N @1 230y

SpM-191ISTP [FI0),

SALEALTR [AuaLnuRA0d 1301

SO SNOFEFIISLIAL

SBUmLES JHURSIAL]

FUOTNGLOUOS PUR SRS PIIALLSIEUL]

2OLAIRS IGOP 0] PIINI] SIXE]

sosodmd [ouaB 105 patasy saxe) Ausdoad
SSIARDE [BIRIUILIAGL)
BoQISoJ 13N W SPFUEY) AXYI() PUF SHNTIAIY [EIIUIL)



26

"§P1001 PLUSIC] PUT [~ NPAYSS YLV 99MOg

90t 69 $ 695169 § LYETILEY SLOTETLST 0786511 $ LTE90S g 0P8 L6T $ 0ST0ET $ 9987179 & 0F6°L61°T § $pUN] [EIUSUNLIDAOS ISIRO {[B [BI0],
90£°69 g 69571597 § L¥6'1LEY SLOEILCT 0786511 3 LTE0S $ v L6T $ 05T 0ET $ 998,79 § Ov6 L6T 1 PRILNSHY
$PUN [EIURWWISAOL 19O [V
1££°398°9 § 659°€L8F § ECEOPTY 606°960°0 0T LOLS $ SEISHE Y $ SRTT6S L $ 2£8°610°8 § G60°1L9°C § 667 985°G § pury [exo0a [E10],
0E0°LT11 €061 96 ST 1 6L00ETT 1£6°601°1 T678¢TT 065°021°1 $L6C86 8697050'1 TITCPEl pauBisseup)
066661 $9LI1¢S mbﬁ.wow; 0SEFI SE1°65C 8TTT6S L89°18T°C 293°CoF YETHe8 PLIEES pausdissy
HETPEe § £29°960°¢ § T10°960°C 03t ISy £E1°8€5°¢ g 979 CI0°E % 110°061°¢ $ T66°L65'9 $ £91°9EL°E § £L6'LOS’E § paiasay
pung [RI2uas)
0zZ0¢ 6107 80T L10T S10¢ S10T 10T £107 10T 110T
“0g 2auny Jo 5Y
pRupaEuL]
(Sunumoooe Jo SISeq [ETLIOOE PALJIPO}
SIE3 X [l USE 1SE]
SPUTL [RIUIUMESAOL) “Sadirefeg punj
SUFEY) IR JO IS [00Y2S



321195 1OP PUE ATING [T SS9 SAMUPLIAND [1105 25T RPN [PHATIUON 0N

LT %EL'T %EYT %oT HSL'E Sald L w%Il'T WS w%OL'S %0T'§
LL9Li60 S WOCGISL 8  GBOCEITIl S  Cu6608IC 5  S€0/9r9 &  Zirtsct § ~ 3710618 §  SBODYLE § 1968659 & 661 v869
FOTSLs L TCEEIT 11 S36605 1T EAVEI) ZIFTEC S WCI 061 8 X0 08T ¥ 196862 9 G561 T3¢9 TLEOSTS
125185} (T60°565°5) 1$29°169°01) TIETHEE] 186211 19597 FERT) {096°58) LTUIB6T 1857 587) STEELS
- - - 50% 100 91 GO0 0% & [ - ¥6% 10 - [y
$EETC
(91€°0T} (066°89) (S66T1) 5671t LSLBTE) (9EFT5E) ($€£708) (§75°rer) ST 818
91{0 066789 $6+°5T1 1561 LS YErTHE BLL08 STEELY oSTEIE
asrs)
SOR°LEL TLETOT
00002
COUDECS G6CTLY
(160°EEr TS
GO0 TIREI
DOB'SESRY
(125°L85) (760756570 (539169701} [exe e ta HELLTE) (9¢8°££0°9) (096'68) 6LLESET (B€T580 9L
5§56 15098 [ 65159 6% C66 160 9L 626 905 £L FO6 780 FL 80T 1089 0ZE 662 5% 60 €209 EBL FFL 0%
99510 00T 207
99T 167191 TEIESYL BSE9TEC| 1805617 686501 09L°LOF°] 06577E 100971 06570551
sEtIEET OsEFITT P 1isT 168752471 000'06E T 000°51571 0000LTT TETL98T LERLGE'T $09°T9FT
F15605Y 269°60°9 SL0'999°TL 9 168T 3ST1TES LTI 2874791 F90° 2977 $678TE¢ LLEIrTY
LELTE S00°0Z 1786 35201
£96°281 S90°191 LS LA 200°9LT 997151 [IEr4al LELTTL 05201 LYL68
DeERLOLE 18L°€06'1T LTEIC6L SEENSTLI OEULOS ST 9L LTSI 19678 €1 oloLorE] ITTIEETl 961195701
+TEG0LT 099°601°¢ 6TYEEET 05279987 965'639'T T69955T 16T TSET rLERITT ISE605T 9961667
901°T8E 197°60% LG OT5 61 86008 607097 STERIE 15068 £96°6L 9£9'r8
96T 2TT $60°57T £1L765T [aggeid 081961 s11°[81 SrOB £6TTLT LITI0T HEGLLT
065°L00° 98050 L5 LTS TOTEIEE L05RETE LTS 9L60DER'E LEOGBLTE WTTPEE
1168 BELUES 1LT$5071 arTgIr SHI 6T SILE00°] roLCRe'l SESLLG 516986 LEFOEFTL
LBOEHL GLI'S79 $050+9 LESEIE Fay 4] BI6°FSS 6E0°CIS £03°EES e 099'elr
182716 FEEGLE SEL606 $E1°958 05617078 1+8759L LITHIL T66°E5L 082°789 IEE6L8
067618 0LLT6LT L1£°806T o808 121°960°¢ SSUROLT T60°SLLT SILERST Erd e Ta 0 N7
010°296 +86°L58 L3916 T S1§°710°1 £L0°260°T 142016 00575l $8L6E8 LT
LOF°LEL 330°FEL S08°59 321079 LS0°EEY 108063 £TTHRS 19£°681 G9T0ET et
1907478 1££°568 91838 LYY ETTLS tIroL8 LE8°TS6 A1 1HET66 BTL'6Z8
FrETSL fileqctd 960'9EL TREESL 104012 L06°1%9 S9L0RD FLL689 SIS YT
63804175 356°H60°S 070TTE reF 985y LEFOErT 07 16ET 72 urdies LS9°T00 LISTELE SELCTSE
9L9°809 08969 51T I5'01% L18718% LY 968519 (Y9979 LL9ES L7595
LETH 15605 9519 SIFEY 776769 i The] S6T65 PEL'SS 8138 gl
BSTHITT [ = 01665 ¥ 07T 8BEHL9T TFULEFT £9TE6ET TEVTTET L96798€T 9E6RECT
*IOTSLLE E6UEEUTE 16£°€50°DE BEOTHS 6T 005°006°67 oETLITST 0586LL°2T SL6'SOE9Y 1657000762 UESTHST
TECTIOSE ¥ob LC9 8 TIDEL6 8L [STIFSE Q8T GLL L FHLFC 1L StC 18529 GFL 65 L9 [EENTTNT] 605 S0C 19
LYC Tl IR TSTRIG 451 8L §11 556 STt FE9 638 radITy o1 950 1 DLTOEL
THrRIET] $66°9T0°F T FI0TO0T! 500767501 316856 RIGELES [$1 2749 SOreeg’) 29800 6L9°E00'S
6L ER6°69 QO P6F 89 LEFTE0'99 T66°C16°C9 o) 566°SES19 PEL 19568 9IS ESYRS LER 0SS MG TS
oL Lr% <06 675 FIT000 | STYLELT 98Ty A (3 26T H1F 1 LTy 886 €05
£68'191 18L°0LE oLyl 155t 639°F 980°r LED sbi'e 0% £90°F1
£5THSE 0957211 3067601 6TH591 SEESLL TE0 15T $EI°85T SETFRLL 006°EF 005709
9666 £RL1LT 6TTLL LSl prayda) 095751 ST04T1 rreLll $9E°96 LEL'T0t
SSCLISEY §  TIIGETLY §  6S6TIIYY 5 BRGBOTIY 3 TISHLEI9 § BERLEC0Y 5 vesTIIUSS § SSTRILIE § TORTISES § LLEGRTYS
az0¢C GI0¢ 310T 2102 910C S0 PI0C E10T TIot 102
TOE ] pOpUD TN
Py
(EUTmeaon Jo 15T [Enost palymotd}
Smoj [Easl] m], 15

r

SPUM [RRATIIADE - SoUTeq Uy u sl
SUrQR) A J0 DL (00KRg

SPAOSDI ELASI(Y Joomot

SOUMPERIND [ECERIou
Jo dmuacd T Se ALS 1G]

6 20y aouEeq pun
1 ATRf 20merRq pUnY

{SD80) KMo SUrduTUL] DG POt SOMQRdNE
{2} LAD SIMUIALT O (ASWLYIP) SSIONT

{S95N) SUIMOS JULHITUL SN0 [210],
APUES UUICLS XIS 30 $I507) M) 91 PRy ADACSYY SaTmmin]
o SRSuRs]
SPNIM [RUOGIPPY
PSS! SPOOQ U0 Wmimiarg
UOMNGLALC) AU
SHT MOIDSD PUGq &1 TR
ponss; spuog
ponss] spuaq Jampanyay
{5950) SO Mﬂmucﬁ.:lum o]

SRIMIPIAXD (DPOTR} DAY
SIRUIAIL JO (ASUII]) SSIINT
SaImIpUAHINDG [T0 ]
JUCTISSE JO 1507)
sy
ediug
TRIARS 193¢
AE[NG [Eide)
S[OUDS LT
Sjoogs [rrasdg
RIORAQLTOS TV I EEE-IK) P ST pRreadifeu[)
HOHELOASHER YRPIS
Ay
SpunaLd 0 daaNdn put 2Ty
SIMAE IR JO JOUTUNUTCN PUR HonedQ
SOOLAIDS TIR{H JO MIRTIURTT PRIREIY
SILATS ATGIOUEO] BOTULICHT Sadelsitiwpy
SIOIADS TRINEY)
SPOLARE YONEOSTULIPE [GHYT
STAALIS UOURLSTURLPE (LI
JFEIS [eUononnsur Suoddns Y0
ASZIQH BIPOW TOTRINPY
LCRONLISTT JO WAL




0oL

SPA0Ial IS _2IR0S

610°8LI°1 96766 615°C1¥ y9zClIl 016°%S LLS FFI £6TYSE 0207
8€6°GE0°1 SPLILL 6L5°38€ 000°Z61 $90°69 16L°101 095°T11 6107
F08°1LL 86°TL] 29 10¥ $08°8S 09€°11 608°L1 306°601 8107
29.°601°1 8v9°LG1 peT18T § 9TC9TE 8P 791 00011 £85°¢ 6TF 691 L10T
888°098 975°cEl $TI°96€ €86°9¢1 0ZTL01 639°% SH86LI1 910Z
0LTWES 095°FE1 0L8°6ST 6£1°801 £85°0L 980°% TEO'IST 5102
1€9°S¥L 095°7€1 CHTEET 9.8°6¥ LL9°E8 LET 8c1°8¢T ¥i0T
0£8°¢8E’1 PPELLT 000°1ZL  $ LSL'SET 668°¢9 65V €9 1A SYTYLT €10z
766°895 89Y°86 LIELST [aANAS $85°L01 009°6 006°ch T10T
SO¥'ELY §  LeLeol $ LY9PIT $ €391 §  9Z9%9 $§  ¥90%I & 00509 § 110T
mHNwO,H. ﬁ&ﬂﬁg ssaq] uﬂuﬁuwﬁ.@m mopwn—vum mﬂOuﬁEuOmmE mﬁéom mﬁ&ﬁ@M mwﬂugm0>5 Eoﬁmﬁrw nom
uorepodsuei], [e3a sguiaeg Ies X IoLd U0 1S2I97U] Junf pepug es A
ABxoug
peytpneur)

(Bununosse Jo SISeq [BNIdOR PoLIPOUL)

SIB3 A IBOSLY U] I5e7]
20mog Aq NUAANY [B00T] ISRQ - PUL] [RISUSL)
SUreqrey’y 3yl Jo 1S (0045



Lok

. 60F'rPZ LG0T LEL£LL690°E OUS'Z00'06L LES'6LLLET'E
i 9E0'LLLBLS'E ZLL'ESLTROE 000226 51 ZLL'C80°LEE'E
1ZZL LAr'08T viE'E 9E6°6YL 666 009'5¥5'26% BES'E6LTEL'E
9617k 50 LyY'ELS'E SB0'61L 26T 009'6¥6'Z51 SBYRESSPL'S
[21E SEV'286'CEP'E COYEET'LLE'T 00£'86L'T6L saL'gev'vol'e

- . - - 006'928'020'S

. - - - 005'Z80'¥¥0'S

- S0STEOTIT L . - 001'S00'LIOE
20 Ly LOLELTE 5Z116R'SUTT 00Y'eSL 4L STEIYO'EE6'E
LY § s LTsele 585'S0L'008'Z  §  OOL'OMS'SLE §  BBYGLORET §

- YOL'GEATILT LIS TEV'ELE L 0O0'g60°6EL L1§'065ZLLT
vEE'L THUSTS QLS T ZE6'L10'556'L 00v'9E0°Tr L LETR0TL60°2
808°; 685'8E8°8RY L OZY'E6L'076'L O9'BEL EvL 0Z0'EeL'va0T
S5T4 FESLO'SSFT BLLELL'BEE | 00£°98Z £ BAO'N4Y' 18O
8Lzt (AN 1 ¥l r 4 £0£'LE8'0E6'L Q0605 EYE 209'880'FL0'T
T £66'902°1L28°Z LESSEE61E'L 00Z'098"H¥L LLG'SSR'LH0'T
00T’} EETLRLCLITT BLTTSTGLE'L 00€"2689' L7l 6/5'668'450'T
[:19 LT ISY'EETT LV LGV PLE' S 0047120281 SLL'EPG'OS0T
SPLL 5EP'L80'689°T 209'100°L16L 005'BLE ¥ Z05'025°950'
gZl'L §  THR'9ELSIET ISP've9'ElE's  § 008°28T9vL §  IS0'ZEE'ESOT  §

B anen, AQEXE] Fisdaid Wilisg ELTTN
29 XTL {pazyenb3 Aurod) UQREMEA 19N xe]:s597 PotSesEY [E19)
[EENERS [EMaY parewns3
100

=y

or

o weishe

BUE 1oL

oRene 10U UORRMLOILY .

0018 Jod ae s3je xel q

dafa ) jo Juawidinha pue stualadu "AISUyaeyy Jo anjeA JIGEXEL ©

LBUELHESOA B IAPIO CLAINSTAL S1SFND9L UCHEXEL J0 RIBOE AUR0D AUl UAUM SINJID0 ILALSEISSERY
-uogEXE} JO pIeoy AUnos Yaes AQ payslqeIse (aniea 1esett Jo Aey) antea snu o ofejuaniad owos J2 passesse aq o) palinbat st Auadad jgey

R4 0CC'CHL'LS 008'S8Z'L CCL'LIETZL o054
TR L o00'0LELE ooR'egz’'L 008'298'0Z1 004’51
84219 COU'SEY LS 008'S82'1 00v'0S5" 02t 00L'6LL
S8LOET'L on089'Le 0OB'SSE'L [l gvrAl 005TLL
S86'p1E'L 000'06E'LS oog'see’t 00¥ pPP DTL 004541
- 0CG'SLELS oog'seet 00L'GiE 0L 00Tl
. 000'000° LS 00L'sZLEL 008"EZ9'0Z1 o4 WA
. 000°000°tS 00L'SZLEL 006'8610ZL 00289t
STL'GES L 000°000°+§ 00L°GZLEL 001262 0Z1 008'0EZ
£82°T95'L $  pOOODTLS  §  OOLSELEL § 0 00KZEZOSE  § 000'/se
215'900' 00¥'Z56'8E 00LZYVIE 000’262 102 oee't
1E6'C20'L Loz 00LZ81'1E Q00FEQ' 0T 009'L
0Z6680°L 00Z'avE'8E ooLeey'Le 00L'ZE0 102 00Z
sLPGLLL Q0T 9vE'HE 003'c8s' 12 009'902'P0E 00z
log'orl’l 0oL 8L L6E 002'198°4T 00F'SEE §0E 60z
LIVRLLL 00L'CLL'6E 008'265'+E 00%'vE5'POT 00z
SLLGELL 00L'ELL'BE 00E'E6S"LE 00 796'70Z 002
[24:-0 004/ 1'6E 00E'E6Y 12 CO¥'6E6°P0T 00Z
cos'ilyl 00L'CLL'8E COL'E65 1S ooL'ezg’ese 000'00Z
25450V $  COL'SZCBE $ COS'EESLT § 0 00Z'880TE § 0 00002 §
« SOMIBN 2Kand [TETT felnsnpu| [CEEEEEE wen

patprreun

SIBIA U] ISE]

Apedold BlgEXE] JO 2NEA [BINDY DUE BRIRA POSSASSY

SWEYEYD 2t JO IS 100Y2g

005°0Y0'LL 004'S00'650°E
COE'BL6°CH 008'228'210°
000'229'01 002'S80'166'E
008'£29'C 0CR'B61LEE8'T
0ps 659 0L 00/‘LLE'958'T
0US040°0H 000'296°598'Z
00§°020°0L 00176 0£8'T
00£°€286 00£'S20°Z6L°C
0065'898°€4 00L'BYEYSLE
009'L6¥'PE §  QOTBEEERLT
auaN n0sara‘see'l
auon toe2ia'red’l
auaN. ooL9ETvie't
sueN 005'82L'008'E
auoN COTZEE L6L}
3ucN (VTR T
auch 00Y'eSL TR
SHON 00L'VBE'8L4"
BUON 000'ZSIVLIL'L
BlUoN 00T Le9TLL L
ST feiiieplisoy

DOE'SER' P
00%'L90°ET
00¢ 80’5t
009°'ie8'se
001'852°T2
00L'$e 1T
008'268'24
00¥' 99T Ve
008" L2822
opg'lee’le

00B'L5S8'Z1

N
saipbaiBby jo sige]aanes

oZoZ
G102
gLz
4102
gLz
S10¢
P
£roT
LT
L2

WENEys o diysumal

s

pUET Wesen

oz0z

ELOZ

8102

LL0Z

aLog

10z

#L0Z

Loz

z10z

1402
weleys Ja yshaieg

'LE Jaquagag
PIPUS JEIA



School District of the Chalhams
Property Tax Rates-Direcl and Overlapping Governments

Las! Ten Years

{rate per $10C of assessed value)

Unaudiled

Schoot Distelct of the Chathams Direct Rals

Qverlapping Rales

(From J-6) Total Direct
General Total Direct and
Year Ended Obligation Debt  School Tax Overlapping
December 31, Basic Rate ° Service® Rate Municipality  Morris County Tax Rate
Borough of Chatham
2011 $ 1.06 8 0.06 $ 1.12 $ 0.37 3 0.26 § 1.75
2012 1.09 0.06 1.16 0.40 0.28 1.82
2013 1.12 0.06 1.18 0.40 0.29 1.87
2014 1.44 €.06 1,20 0.41 0.28 1.0
2016 1.16 0.05 1.21 0.41 0.28 1.90
2016 .17 0.04 1.22 0,42 0.30 1.83
2017 1.20 0.05 1.28 0.42 0.31 1.89
2018 1.24 0.06 1.31 0.42 0.31 2.04
2019 1.27 0.08 133 0.43 0.34 210
2020 * * & x *
Township of Chatham
2011 $ 1.02 $ 0.05 $ 1.07 $ 0.33 $ 0.26 $ 1.66
2042 1.02 0.05 1.07 0.33 0.286 1.65
2013 * * * * *
2014 * ® - * "
201 5 = * - * *
2018 0,04 117 0.30 0.28 1.76
2017 0.05 1.20 0.30 0.29 1.79
2018 0.08 1.22 0.32 0.29 1.83
2019 0.06 1.24 0,32 0.30 1.85
2020 £ * * * "

Source:

A4F and Table of Aggregatos

a The districl's basic lax rata is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net vaiuation taxable.
b Rates for debt service are basad on each year's requirements.

* |nformation not avallable
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School District of the Chathams
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Years

Unaudited

Coilected within the Fiscal Year of

Taxes Levied for the Levy®
the Fiscal Year -

Year Endad School District of Percentage Collections in
June 30, the Chathams Armount of Levy Subsequenri Years
2011 3 54,289,371 $ 54,289,374 100.00% -
2012 55,524,892 55,624,892 100.00% -
2013 56,734,233 56,734,233 100.00% -
2014 58,611,004 58,611,994 100.00% -
20156 60,397,848 80,397,848 100.00% -
2018 61,374,822 61,374,822 100,00% -
2017 62,408,848 62,408,948 100.00% -
2018 64,622,959 64,622,959 100.00% -
2019 67,289,113 67,289,113 100.00% -
2020 68,517,359 68,517,359 100.00% -

Taxes Levied for Collected within the Fiscal Year of

the Fiscal Year - the Levy "

Year Ended Borough of Pearcenlage Collections in
December 31, Chatham Amount of Levy Subsequent Years
2011 3 36,110,675 $ 35593677 98.67% $ 516,998
2012 37,522,368 37,081,025 98.82% 441,343
2013 38,498,159 38,163,043 99.13% 335,116
2014 39,135,444 38,691,949 98.87% 443,495
2015 39,628,224 39,285,009 899.13% 343,215
2016 40,239,670 39,883,859 99.12% 355,811
2017 41,457,796 41,221,730 99.43% *
2018 42,816,719 42,496,360 99,25% *
2019 * * * *
2020 *x * ] * *
Collected within the Fiscal Year of
Taxes Levied for the Levy®
the Fiscal Year -
Year Ended Township of Percentage Collections in
December 31, Chatham Amount of Levy Subsequent Years

2011 [ 49,677,500 $ 48,991,001 98.62% $ 686,508
2012 50,526,518 49,738,810 98.44% 787,708
2013 51,729,900 51,091,103 98.77% 638,831
2014 53,408,611 52,764,058 98,78% 1,221,669
20156 54,209,387 53,225,477 98.18% 983,910
2018 53,408,511 52,764,058 98.79% 644,453
2017 56,665,494 55,832,448 98.53% *
2018 59,025,448 58,565,473 98.22% *
2018 60,193,989 59,768,032 99.28% *
2020 * * * *

Source: District records Including the Cerlificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form).

Note: The top chart represents the Schoot District only, while the bottom twoe charts represent the lotal levy for
each lown/borough (municipality, county, school, etc}.

a - School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Colfector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required fo remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the amount certified prior to the end of
the scheol year. :

* . Information not available
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J-10
School District of the Chathams
Ratios of Ouistanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited
Governmental Aclivities
Percentage of
Year Ended General Obligation Personal Per Capila
June 30, Bonds Capital Leases Total District Income * income ?
2011 $ 36,700,000 $ 489988 % 37,189,989 021% § 77,207
2012 35,535,000 167,182 35,692,152 0.22% 80,027
2013 34,325,000 - 34,325,000 6.24% 80,868
2014 33,055,000 - 33,065,000 0.25% 83,687
2015 29,325,000 - 29,325,000 0.30% 87,896
2016 27,835,000 5,390,000 33,225,000 0.27% 89,085
2017 42,414,000 4,949 609 47,363,609 0.19% 89,065
2018 41,089,000 4,363,146 45452 146 0.20% 89,085
2019 39,119,000 4,108,656 43,227 656 0.23% 08,842
2020 37,075,000 3,821,208 40,896,208 *
Source: District CAFR Schedules |-1 and District records,
Note; Details regarding the Districl's outsianding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements.

information not available
a See J-14 for parsonal Income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income and
population for the current calendar year,
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School District of the Chathams
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited

General Bonded Debt Cutstanding

Percentage of

Year General Net General Aclual Taxable
Ended Obligation Bonded Debt Value  of
June 30, Bonds Energy Lease Deductions Qutstanding Property Per Capita
2010 $ 37,810,000 $ 37,810,000 1.97% $ 74,480
2011 36,700,000 36,700,000 1.92% 77,207
2012 36,535,000 35,535,000 1.86% 80,027
2013 34,325,000 $ 77,646 34,247 354 1.78% 80,868
2014 33,085,000 154,034 32,900,966 1.72% 83,687
2015 29,325,000 257,397 29,087,603 1.51% 87,896
2016 27,835,000 $ 5,380,000 254,225 32,970,775 1.71% 89,065
2017 42 414,000 4,949,609 115,184 47,248,425 2.44% 94 259
2018 41,089,000 4,363,148 168,464 45,283,682 2.33% 08,842
2019 39,119,000 4,108,655 178,486 43,048,170 2.20% **
2020 37,075,000 3,821,208 69,306 40,826,802 2.07% *
Source:

Noles:

k&

a See J-6 for property tax data.
b Population data can be found in J-14,

Details regarding the district’s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financiai statements.

This information is not available for this District.

J-11
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J-12
School District of the Chathams
Diract and Overlapping Governmentai Activities Debt
As of June 30, 2020

Unaudited
Esftimated Estimated Share
Percentage of Overapping
Governmental Unit Debt Cutstanding Applicahle * Debt
Debt repaid with properiy {axes
Chatham Township Not Available
Chatham Borough Not Available
Morris County General Obligation Debt Not Available
Subtotal, overlapping debt Not Available
School District of the Chathams $ 40,826,902
Total direct and overlapping debt $ 40,826,802

Sources: Assessed vaiue dala used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Morris County Board of Taxation,
Debt outstanding data provided by each governmantal unit.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.
This scheduie estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overiapping governments that is borne by the residents and
businesses of Chatham Borough and the Township of Chatham. This process recognizes that, when considesing the District's
ability to issue and repay long-term deby, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.
However, this doas not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping
payment.

a For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed properly values.

Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within the
disirict's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable value.
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School District of the Chathams
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Years

Unaudited
Per Capita Unemployment
Year Population * Personal Income ® Personal Income ® Rate’
Borough of Chatham
2011 9,027 $ 696,947 589 % 77,207 65.10%
2012 9,038 723,284,028 80,027 5.30%
2013 9,052 732,017,138 80,868 2.80%
2014 9,030 766,446,793 83,687 3.70%
2015 9,008 781,767,168 &7.898 3.30%
2016 B,986 800,249,026 89,065 3.30%
2017 8,928 841,544,352 94,259 2.80%
2018 B, 7658 866,350,130 98,842 2.50%
2019 8,635 i ** 2.00%
2020 ® L3 L] LEd
Township of Chatham
2011 10,476 3 808,820,632 3 77,207 3.00%
2012 19,614 841,403,878 80,027 2.90%
2013 10,667 54,632,156 80,868 3.00%
2014 19,667 863,483,659 83,6887 5.20%
2015 10,527 925,281,192 87,896 4.00%
2016 10,475 932,855,875 88,065 3.40%
2017 10,435 983,692,665 04,269 3.10%
2018 10,284 1,016,491,128 88,842 2.80%
2018 10,117 w * 2.30%
2020 * e *k Ak
Source:

? Population information providad by the N¢ Dapt of Labor and Workfarce Developme

® personal Income has been estimated based upon the municipal pepulation and per capita persenal income presented.

nt.

° Par capita personal income by County (Morris) estimated based upon the regional economic information system,

US Bureau of Economic Analysis, November 2019,
% Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Davelopmant.

Ak

This information is not available from State.
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School Dislrict of the Chathams
Frincipal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Unaudited
2020 2011
Percentage of Percentage of
Total Total
Municipal Municipal
Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment
TOWNSHIP OF CHATHAM * * * *
BOROUGH OF CHATHAM * * * *

* This information not available for the District.
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Functlon/Program

Insiruction
Regular
Speclal Educalion

Support Services
Sludant & instruclicn related services
General adminisiralive services
School administrallve services
Business edminisirative services
Piant operalion & maintenance
Pupll transperation

Total

Source: Dislrict Personned Records
and 2020 budget support document.

School District of the Chathams

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-time Equivalent Districi Employees by Funclion/Pregram

J-16

Unaudited
2011 2012 2043 2014 2016 2016 2047 2018 2018 2020
271.50  280.00 286.00 28290 242 .90 299,90 30240 316560 32241 333,00
84.20 89.30 9530 12030 127.80 43390 13540  141.20 144.29 149,03
30.80 34.10 36.60 30.40 30,40 30,40 31.40 32.80 33.52 34.62
10.40 9.40 10.40 5.00 5.0¢ 5.60 8.00 6.10 8.23 5.43
28.50 28.50 28.50 35.70 3570 35.70 35,70 37.20 38.01 39.26
7.00 B.G0 8.00 8.00 8.00 B.00 8.00 8.40 8,58 8.86
42.80 42.80 42.90 44.00 45,00 45.00 45.00 47.20 48,23 49.80
1,00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
476.30  493.20 5G8.70  637.30 545.80 558,90  B64.90 58940 80227 62200
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School District of the Chathams
insurance Schedule
Year ended June 30, 2020

Unaudited

School Commercial Package Policy - Utica
Property - Blanket, building and contents
Property - Equipment Breakdown
Business Income
Commercial General Liability

Commercial General Liability - Products/Completed Ops)

Commercial General Liability Personal & Advertising
Commercial General Liability - Each Occurrence
Commercial General Liability - Damage to Premises
Commercial General Liability - Medical Payments
Electronic Data Processing

Educators Legal Liability

Employment Related Practices

Abuse or Molestation Liability
Abuse or Molestation Liability
Employee Benefits Liability
Employee Benefits Liakility

Leased Property Utica
Cyber Liabiity - Utica
Commercial Automotive Liability - Utica

Workers Compensation - NJSIG

Poliution - Commerce & industry ins. Beazley

Umbrella Excess Liability - Utica

Crime - Utica
Employse Theft
Forgery / Fraud
Inside the Premises - Theft of Money & Securities
QOutside the Premises - Theft of Money & Securities
Computer Fraud

J-20

- Coverage Deductible
191,139,304 2,500
191,139,304 2,500

Actual  Loss
3,000,000 (aggregate)
3,000,000 (aggregate)
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
10,000
2,500,000 1,000
1,000,000 7,600
3,000,000 (aggregate)
1,000,000 (aggregate)
1,000,000 ({(each claim) 5,000
1,000,000 (each loss)
3,000,000 (aggregate)
1,000,000 (each loss) 1,000
3,000,000 (aggregate)

100,000 1,000
1,000,000 10,000
1,006,000 1,000
3,000,000
1,000,000 10,000
10,000,000 10,000

400,000 500

100,000 500

25,000 500
25,000 500
10,000 500
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W’ WISS

A PARTNER TO GROW WITH

K-1

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

School District of the Chathams

Chatham, New Jersey

County of Morris

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the School
District of the Chathams, in the County of Morris, New Jersey (the “District”) as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 25, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards and the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control
or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

St G, (.

Scott A. Clelland
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 1049

Wisse % Coughansy

WISS & COMPANY, LLP

January 25, 2021
Florham Park, New Jersey
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A PARTNER TO GROW WITH

Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal and State Program and Report on
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance and
New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08

Independent Auditors’ Report

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

School District of the Chathams

Chatham, New Jersey

County of Morris

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the School District of the Chathams’, in the County of Morris, New Jersey (the
“District”) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB
Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the District’s major federal and state programs for the
year ended June 30, 2020. The District’s major federal and state programs are identified in the
summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major federal
and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements
as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey; and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance); and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of
Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and New
Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
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assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal and state program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
District’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and
state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and
New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not

suitable for any other purpose.
Sat & ol

Scott A. Clelland
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 1049

Wi+ Cosghany-

WISS & COMPANY, LLP

January 25, 2021
Florham Park, New Jersey
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(continued)
School District of the Chathams
Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance
include the federal award and state financial assistance activity under programs of the federal and
state government for the year ended June 30, 2020. The District is defined in Note 1 to the
District’s basic financial statements. All federal awards and state financial assistance received
directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance
passed through other government agencies, are included on the schedules of expenditures of federal
awards and state financial assistance.

The information in these schedules are presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2
U.S, Code of Federal Regulations Part 200-Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Therefore,
some amounts presented in these schedules may differ from amounts presented, or used in the
preparation of, the basic financial statements, Because the schedules present only selected portions
of the operations of the District, they are not intended to and do not present the financial position,
changes in net position, or cash flows of the District.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The expenditures reported on the accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and
state financial assistance (Schedules) are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the
exception of programs recorded in the enterprise fund, which are presented using the accrual basis
of accounting and those recorded in the special revenue fund, which are presented using the
budgetary basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, wherein certain types of
expenditures are allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. These bases of accounting is
described in Note 1 to the District's basic financial statements.

3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with amounts reported in the District’s
basic financial statements. The basic financial statements present the general fund and special
revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements and schedules (RSI) are
presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal
compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the
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(continued)
School District of the Chathams
Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of

Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

Year ended June 30, 2020
3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements (continued}

fiscal year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or
when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis of
accounting with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payments in the
current year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2, For GAAP purposes, the
payments are not recognized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral and recording of the
fast state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the
accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis, which recognizes encumbrances
as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $31,098 for the
general fund and $69,124 for the special revenue fund. See the Note to Required Supplementary
Information (C-3) for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of accounting for
the general fund, special revenue fund, debt service fund and enterprise fund. Financial award
revenues are reported in the District’s basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $ 14,486,113 § 14,486,113
Special Revenue Fund $ 812,547 176,966 989,513
Debt Service Fund 215,364 215,364
Food Service Enterprise Fund 48,947 3,026 51,973

Total financial award revenues $ 861,494 $ 14,881,469 § 15,742,963

4. Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related
federal and state financial reports.
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(continued)
School District of the Chathams
Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

Year ended June 30, 2020

5, Other

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Donation Program represent current year value
received and current year distributions, respectively. TPAF Social Security Contributions represent
the amounts reimbursed by the State for the employer’s share of social security contributions for
TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2020. The post retirement pension, disability insurance
and medical benefits received on-behalf of the District for the year ended June 30, 2020 amounted
to $8,796,103. Since on-behalf post retirement pension, disability insurance and medical benefits
are paid by the State directly, these expenditures are not subject to a single audit in accordance with
New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, however, they are reported on the Scheduie of Expenditures of
State Financial Assistance, as directed by the funding agency.

6. Indirect Costs

The District elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed by the Uniform
Guidance.
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School District of the Chathams
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended June 30, 2020
Part I - Summary of Auditors’ Results
Financial Statements
Type of report the auditors issued on whether the financial
statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Are any material weakness(es) identified? Yes v No

Are any significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes v None Reported
Is any noncompliance material to financial

statements noted? Yes v No
Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:

Are any material weakness(es) identified? Yes v No

Are any significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes v None Reported
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major

federal programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes v No
Identification of major federal programs:
CFDA Number(s) FAIN Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.027, 84.173 HO27A190100/H173A190114 IDEA Part B, Basic and Preschool
(Special Education Cluster)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? v Yes No
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School District of the Chathams

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)
Year ended June 30, 2020

Part I - Summary of Auditors’ Results (continued)

State Financial Assistance
Internal control over major state programs:;
Are any material weakness(es) identified? Yes v No

Are any significant deficiency(ies) identified? None
Yes v Reported

Type of auditors’ report on compliance for major state
programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with NJ OMB Circular 15-087 Yes v No

Identification of major state programs:

GMIS/Program Number Name of State Program or Cluster

495-034-5094-003 Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Tax

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? v Yes No
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School District of the Chathams

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2020

Part IT - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

No compliance or internal control over financial reporting findings noted that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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School District of the Chathams
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)
Year ended June 30, 2020

Part III - Schedule of Federal Award and State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs

No federal award or state financial assistance program internal control over compliance
or compliance findings or questioned costs were noted that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200 Section .516(a) or New Jersey State OMB Circular 15-08,
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School District of the Chathams
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Year ended June 30, 2020

No prior year findings were noted.

K-7
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